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THE ADMZNISTRATiVE.LAW JUDGE: Good morning.
My name is Judge Moran, William B. Moran. We're here
this morning for the case which is captioned as in
the Matter of Lowell Vos, doing business as Lowell
Vos Feedlot, Woodbury County, lowa, Docket No., CWA,
which stands for c1e§n Water Act, 07-2007-0078.

Will counsel identify themselves for the
ieCord,_piease, beginﬁing with counsel for EPA.

MR . BREEDLOVE:  ves, Your Honor. Dan
Breedlove, J. Daniel Breedlove—--that's
B-R-E-E-D-L-0-V-E--counsel for Environmental
Protection Agency.

MR. RYAN: I‘m.Mark Ryan'With the Boise,
Idaho, office, Assistant Regional Counsel, Region 10.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: So you're
still out there in Idahoc?

MR. RYAN: Yes, 1 am.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: I thought
you'd relocated. All xight.

MR. McAFEE: Your Honor, I'm Eldon McAfee.
I'm counsel for the Résp@ndent, Lowell Vos.

_THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Nice to meet
yoﬁ.

MR. McAFEE: You just wanted counsel, I
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gather?

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JﬁDéE: I meaﬁ, these
are formai‘proceedings, but I'm not that strict: So
if you want to introduce the Respondent or
representétive'of the feedlot, I assume that
individual is here.

MR. McAFEE: This is Mr. Lowell Vos.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Nice to meet
you, sir.

MR. McAFEE: A% counsel table with us is his
wife, Judy Vos. | B

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Nice to~meet.
both of you. |

All right. Before we begin, there's one
itém that I'm going to deal with, and that i1s the
motion filed by EPA to supplement its prehearing
egchange; |

With that, fhere was a response from the
Respondent and then a reply. The response is titled.
as Respond@nﬁ‘s resistance to the motion, and then
EPA filed a reply.. | |

I won't take a lot of time to talk about
this. Provisionally, I'm denying the motion on EPA's
parf‘to supplement this ﬁrehearing exchange. I say

"provisionally" because, as you'll see in a moment
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when-l talk about this, I think about the expression
about be careful what you wish for.

Unless I'm understating this, this
essentially consists of two photographs which EPA at .
pést the 1ith hour attempted to put into evidence. |

As EPA I think admitted_in one of their
documents,.they recognized that i{ was beyond the
15~day period for supplementing prehearing exchanges
per Section 22.22--yes, it's 22.22, entitled |
evidence.ﬁ And that section references 2219(a},
subpart a, e and f.

| In the most'g@nerous construction as to when
this was filed, 1t was, at'most, 14 days before and
not 15 days. And if one doesn't count the day that
it was actually filed—~tha£*s on the 8th--then it
would be 13 days before the hearing was to begin.

That is important. But what is even more
important is that these photos were taken on Jﬁne 25,

2003. And although EPA expressed some surprise

pecause Mr.--I don't know if it's pronounced Prier or

Prier'withrthe Iowa Department of Natu;ai Resources--
EPA pocints out in.one of their dgcuments, "Well, this
is one of the Respondent's witnesses." But it’'s also
one of-EPA's witnesses.

And the fact that these photographs were
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taken way badk, over five years ago, on June 25,
2003, fo allow this evidence at this late date is
totally inconsistent with the spirit and the 1@tte¥
of the section that I just cited.

It'é incumbent upon EPA and incumbent upon
the Respondent in the spifit-of the'preheéring
exchanges to deliver all of the information which
they haVé at hand or could with reasonable diligence
acguire.

And cer%ainly this last minute attempt to
ask this witness to scour his computex or whatever Lt
was and then miraculously comes uﬁ with a couple of
photos, I can't allocw fhat.

And then the alternative would have been to
postpone the hearing. This hearing has heen
scheduled for a‘vezy‘long'period of time. .Andlso,
therefore, that's my ruling on it.

Now, I §aid "prqvisionally" b@cause I have

not had a chance to check what the Respondent's

‘position is on this. But since this is a Clean Water

Act case, therefore, it inevitably brings in the
issue of Rapanos, the Supreme Court'decision in
Rapanos, which I have written about in two recent
Clean Water Act decisions, one of which I issued last

week.
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The earlier one_is entitled Smith Farms.
It's actually--the entire caption escapes me, but
it's Vico and tﬁen Smith Farms. And then there is
another Vico decision, and--it's Emilio Ventures,
that's 1t.

The second one is also informally known as
Lewis Farms, and that's the one I just issued last
week, in which the question of the Clean Water Act,
the various interpretations by‘the different grou@s
of judges, where I discuss the impact of that.

But one of the issues in there, in that case
and perhaps in this case, 1s the guestion of
connectivity.

So as I'm looklng at Lhese photographs,
whlch I would notw—wzli not consider at all and whlch
I'm capable of totally ignoring in ¢ase there's any
worries on the part of R@spondent.l This is not like
some jury trial where the jury can't get something
out of their mind. Believé me, 1 can.

But as I'm looking at this, I'm wondering
does thaﬁ really hurt the Respondent's case or helé
the Réspondent's case on the subjecﬁ of connectivity
if that's something that Respondents are challenging.

I frankly can't--and I thought I would have

time this morning to go back over the answer and the
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prehearing exchange filing, not the documents

themselves, but the filing to see what Respondent’'s

.position was. But as it turned out, I had other

things going on and I didn't have a chance to refresh
my r@collection about that.

But, nevertheless, in all of th@ée Cilean
Water Act cases involving the gquestion of
whether--how there is a connection, a link to
navigable waters, navigable in fact waters and things
such as in.the cases I alluded to a minute ago where
you have unnamed tributaries which evéntually'connect
up, then it gets iﬁto the'qqestion of whether the

unnamed tributary is dry most of the year or whether

there is in fact any real connection, as alluded to

by Justice Scalia ip writing for a total of four.
Three other justices joined him in that.. |

And the phrases that he used--I should be
able to call them to mind--but it's essentially the

distinction between something that's running more

‘often than not, let's say. That's not the terms that

he used.
Rut, on the other hand, there are things I

think they described as something that's a wash, you

.know, something.that‘s so ephemeral, that the

connection is so minimal that there's a real gquestion
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whether thefe's any real connection in fac£ that's
recognized by thé courts.

and then I'm not even going to get into 1it,
pbecause this is:not'the forum right now for an
extended discussiocn of where justice Kennedy's
perspective ﬁould be involved, but that's something I
would look ét if that's rajised by the parties.

In ahy event, to wind up a rather lengthy
discussion here, that is my ruling unless the
R@spohdent decides that, in fact,.theyrdo want those
photographs‘in, that the motidn to supplement the
record at this laté date for the reasons I've stated
is denied.

Now, are thefé.any other existing motions
that I have to deal with? I think not.

MR. BREEDLOVE: Not that I'm aware of, Your
Honor.

_THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Ckay. Then
we're ready to begin. And I'11 offer the parties the

cpportunity to make an opening statement. It's not

required, but you have that option.

So, Mr. Breedlove, do you care to make an

- opening statement?

MR. BREEDLOVE: Yes, Your Honor.

MR. RYAN: Your Honor, as a point of order
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and before we do the opening statement, 1f I may,

the--we have stipulations as to moest of the
documenés.

THEIADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Oh, you
mentioned that.

MR. RYAN: and we would like to know wheﬁher'
you woﬁld like us simply to move the stipulated
documenfs en masse Now.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Yes,llet's do
that.

MR. RYAN:  Eldon, pleaéé correct me if I'm
wrong, but we do not have a stipulation for Exhibit
9, do not. We also do not have a stipulation for
Exhibit 25. Exhibit 9 is the only one with ﬁo

stipulation. Exhibit 25 we will not be entering.

‘Bxhibits 35 and 38 we will not be using--35 through

38.

THE‘ADMINISTRATIVé-LAW JUDGE: You will ﬁot
be seeking to admit those?

‘MR. RYAN: We will not be seeking to admit.
25, 35, 36, 37 and 38. Those are out.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay.

MR. RYAN: Exhﬁbit 9 has not been stipulated
to. At the proper time we Qiil lay a foundation and

move it into evidence.
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THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE; Okay.

MR. RYAN: Other@iée, Your Honor, 1 woﬁld-
move all exhibits @xcept.for 9, 25, 35 through 38 on
the Complainant's side into evidence.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Mr. McAfee.

MR. McAFEFR: Your Honor, 1 would agree, with
the exception that I believe it's Exhibits 9, 10 and
11 that were not stipulated to.

MR. SREEDLOVE: To the point that it
included reference to the--

MR. McAFEE: I'm sorry.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Let's not
have this discussion on the record. Do you want a
moment toltalk about.this off the record?

MR. BREEDLOVE: Yes.

THE ADMINESTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: We'll go off
the record, pleasé.'

(Off—théwrebord discussion.}

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JéDGE: We'xe.back on’
the record.

MR. RYAN: Your Honor, I'm sorry forrthe
confusion. Theré is no stipulation to Exhibit 9,
Exhibit 10, Exhibit 11 and Exhibit 23. We will lay
the proper foundation wﬁen the time comes to get

those into evidence.
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As I stated earlier, Exhibits 25, 35, 36,
37, 38 will not be used by Complainant.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Are those in
these notebooks I have in front of me?

MR. RYAN: They are, and we will remove them
at the appropriate'time.

| THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. Well,
let's--

MR. RYAN: So at this time I would move into
evidence all Complainant's Exhibits except 9, 10, 11,
23, 25, and 35 through 33.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Does that
sound right, Mr. McAfee?‘

MR, McAFEE: Yes, it does, Your Honor.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Then those as
deécribed by Mr. Ryan, those,exhibits——you don't
really have to worry ébout the ones that are not
géing to be admitted in any event, but the ones that
will be removed from the record are 25, 35, 36, 37
and 38; 1s that right?

MR. RYAN; Corrgct, Your Honoxr.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JU?GE: Okay. And
then we‘ll‘deal w;th the others—-—9f 10 and 11 and

23--as they come up.
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(Complainant's EXhibits 1 through §,
12 through 22, 24, Z6 through 34 and 39
through 49 were received in evidence.}

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:\-All right.
Mr. Breedlove, do you have stipulations from EPA as
to your exhibits?

MR. McAFEE: Yes, Your Honor. Mr. McAfee.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: I'm sorry.

MR. McAFEE: That's okay. I just want to
make sure the record is cleér;

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: You Should do
that.

MR. McAFEE: T move for the Respondent that
pursuant fo-the joint sfipulation,that all of the
Respondent'é exnibits are being admitted. v
Mr..Breedlove and T discussed in the joint
stipulation--it's not in the notebook yet--but there
will be an original copy of a letter with signatures
that will be Exhibit 3 for Respondent, and that has
been stipulat@d to. ’

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. Is

that right, Mr. Breedlove?

MR. BREEDLOVE: It's Respondent's
Exhibit No. 2, Your Honor.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay.
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MR. McAFEE: And we'll take care of that.
It Will he in the notebook, Your Honor.

(Respondent's Exhibits 1 through
4 were received in evidence.)

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Thapk you .
ALl rigﬁt. Ther that stipulation is noted, as well.
Anything else in térmé of housekeeping or just
streamlining this process?

Yes, Mr. Ryan.

MR. RYAN: Your ﬁonorj I think whét_&@‘re
stipulating to mové into the record would be
Respondent's hearing exhibits as opposed to‘the
prehearing exchange. The stipulations we have

refereﬁce to about prehearing exchanges-—-a lot of the

documents have been removed from Respondent's

prehearing exchange. S50 we're stipulating to the

admissibility of the Respondent's hearing exhibits.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Ckay. - And,
frankly, unless there is a matter that reguires me to
lock at. those prehearing.exchange documents, I don't
look at them. I méan, I ﬁaVe'other things to be
doing than just thumbing through potential exﬁibits.
So we never look at those things;

In fact, this is sort of a musing~-a musing,

not amusing--about whether it's really wise to
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continue this practice of sending in these
preheating——voluminous, sometimes, preheariﬁg
exchange documents.when th@y'reAnot part of the
record. Separate documents are admitted if 1t goes
to hearing in any event.

.‘And it's just~-- They're not necessary for
me unless it's in connectioﬁ with some motion I have
to look at particular exhibits, and then they could
be submitted then.

Mr. Ryan, do the rules reguire that the
prehearing exchange documents be submitted tc the
presiding officer; do yéu know?

MR. RYAN: That's my understanding, Your
Honor.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okéy.
Anything else?

MR. BREEDLOVE: No, Your Hoﬁor.

MR. McAFEE: No.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Let's begin
then. |

Are you ready for.your opening statement,
Mr. McAfee?

MR. BREEDLOGE: Mr. Breedlove, Your Honor.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay.

Mr. Breedlove.
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MR. BREEDLOVE: Yes, I am, Your Honor. May
I approach the podium?

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Yes.

MR. BREEDLOVE: Your Honor, if I may, 1T
would like to move the exhibit that's on- the easel
into better light. It's a little easier to see.

THE ADMINISTRATEVE LAW JUDGE: Sure.

ME. BREEDLOVE: Your Honor, fthere's two
themes to this case. The first one is that water
must run downhill. It's a simple fact that when
water, enough of it, lands on thé top of a hill in
the form of precipitation as the soil'gets saturated
must run downhill. Thatfs the pasis that forms our
streams and our rivegs.

In this instance, Mr. Vos has placed a
feedlot on top of a hill--Mr. Vos' feedlot is at the
top of the hill--and within that feedlot he has
plaCéd at a time significant to this case thousands
of head of cattle.

With those thousands of head cof cattle also

'cémé thousgands of tons of manure. When there's been

ehough precipitation, the water Ccomes down on that

‘manure and washes off a cocktail of contaminants,

pathogens, nutrients, solids, all things detrimental

to our streams.
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Iin particular, in this instance we have an
snnamed tributary to Elliot Creek that is directly
west of the facility and that runs down to Elliot
Creek, which is a watex of the U.S.'as sﬁipulated to
by the parties--excuse me--as admitted in
Respondent's answer to our complaint.

The Clean Water Act was‘created in the
seventies, and ‘it naﬁed in particular contentrated
animal feeding lots as.a point source, recognizing
the poténtial they have to cause harm Lo aguatic life
and the health of our streams.

Part of the Clean Water Act required
controls pursuant to NPDES permits, National
Pollution Discharge Elimination Sys{em permits, for
facilities like Mr. Vos' to put runoff control
structures in place to make sure that that runoff
didn't.enter our streams.

In this instance, Mr. Vos was given an
opportunity early dn. In 1991 he was issued a permit
by the ITowa Departmént of Watural Rescurces, givingr
him permission to go ahead and construct those
controls, create the runoff control structures to
prevent this facllity from having runoff go ihto the
streams.

Those controls—-

PETERSEN COURT REPORTERS
317 Sixth Avenue, Suite 606
Des Moinés, IA 50309-415%5 -

(515} 243-6596




10

11

12
13
14
15
16
17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

20

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: That date was
what?

MR. BREEDLOVE: 1991, Your Hocnor. Thoge
controls were never constructed. To this date, these
controls have not been constructed.

The E?A will introduce evidence of
investigations performed by'the Towa Department of
Natural Resources, their fisheries division, looking
at the diversity and populétions tﬁat ére‘found in
Elliot Creek along the strefch southwest of the
faciiity and also a 500-foot stretch of the unnamed
tributary. |

We will present evi&ence that thése fish

populations have been nearly decimated, that

diversity is not near what it should be'compared to

other streams in Northwest lowa.

The second theme of this case‘is opportunity
lost. Like I mentioned, in.l991 Mr. Vos wWas issued
an NPDES permit by the Iowa Department of Natural
Resources and reguired to build controls pursuant to
it. As I said, those controls were never buillt.

| In 2000 and 2001, in rééognition of
widespread noncompliance with the Clean Water Act in
Iowa, the Iowa Department of Natural Resources came

up with a registration plan.
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That registration plan gave large facilities
like Mr. Vos' an opportunity to come into compliance,
presehted a fivé~year amnesty period by which the
facility could use that period without threat of
enforcement of state law if they came into compliance
by the end of the compliance period. The‘Iowa Plan
was 2001 through 2006,

THE-ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: The amnesty
period was 2001--in terms of thé.state's.perspective,

2001_to when?

MR. BREEDLOVE: The Iowa Plan, the period of

time that they had, the large.CAFOs had an
opportunity to come into compliance was that
five-year period, Your Honor, 2001 toF2GOé.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW jUDGE: When in 20067
Wheﬁ did it énd? |

o MR. BREEDLOVE: I+ would be April 1, 2006,
around that date, Your Honor.

THE ADMINZSTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. So
that's--is that failir to describe that as the period
of amneéty?

MR..BREEDLOVE: _No, Your Honor, it would not
pe. That was the period provided'for by-the Iowa
Department of Natural Resources to come into

compliance.
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Now, amnesty-was §rovisioned.on full
com?lianée with this Iowa Plan; and with that, full
compiiamca meant full compliance with the Clean Water
Act by April of 2006;

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay.

‘MR. BREEDLOVE: The simple fact is that
period came aﬁd went, and Mr. Vos did not b@ild
controls; 'In fact, there were a number of milestones
set up by the lowa Department of Natural Resources
during that fivé—year periocd, and not a single one of
tﬁose milestones were met.

3o the Iowa Plan ended, Mr. Vos was not in

compliance, amnesty was lost. I need to reiterate

that amnesty was only for state law, did not apply to -

.fed@ral law.

So the simple fact is IDNR came up With
another opportunity for Mr. Vos to come into-
compliance after full knbwledge as of 1991 that he
had to be in compliance. That opportunity was lost,
it was not taken advantage of.

During the.period of noncompliance, Mr. Vos
ex?erienced significant financial ben@fit.from not
having to build the contrels. The simple fact is .
these controls are expensive. With that expense

comes the avoided or délayed-cost that he avoided or
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that he--excuse me-- With that delay or failure to
build those controls came the economic benefit he
received from not having to put ﬁhat money into the
capital improvements of his facility.

This is money tﬁat other facilities in Iowa
did put into their facilities at that time. Roughly
100 or so facilities came into.compliance pursuant to
the Iowa Plan. Mr. Vos was not one of themn.

To establish a prima facie case, the
Government has to show that there was a -discharge of
pollutanﬁs from a point source to water of the United
States without a permit.

In his answer, Respondent admitted that he
was a point source, that Elliot Cre@k is a water of
the U.S. and that heé did not have an NPDES permit.
The only issue at issue is whether discharge has
occurred at this fécility.

Mr. Lorenzo Sena, the EPA inspector that
inspected Mf. Vos' facility in 2606, identified
significant erosional features from Mr. Vos' facility
demonstrating that livestock--feedlot runoff is

leaving his facility and heading towards Elliot

,Creek—wexcuse me--the unnamed tributary of Elliot

Creek. At the time of that inspection there was

water flowing in the unnamed tributary.
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Mr. Stephen Pollard, EPA's compliance
officer, has been to the site three times. Each time
there has been water flowing in the unnamed
tributary.

During those visits he was able to walk the
flow paths where the feedlot flowed from Respondent's
facility all the way to the ungamed tributary.

MrL Pollard has then also reviewed aerial
photography shbwing that the similar erosionél
features that he saw in 2@08‘were also present in,
2002, 2004, 2005 and 20606.

So in short, this facility has been
dischargihg for a number of years.and thelerosional

features demonstrate a clear and unobstructed

connection between the feedlot and the unnamed

tributary, which alsoc has a direct connection to
Elliot Creek.

| sandy Doty is a hydrologist that's @oing to
be presenting some mathemaﬁical modeiing. The simple
fact is that there ié an unobstructed path and
discharges do occur from this fécility. There 1is
nothing to stop;them.

The real guestion is when and how much do

get.to the stream, the unnamed tributary. That's

what Ms. Doty will speak to.

PETERSEN COURT REPORTERS
317 Sixth Avenue, Suite 606
Des Moines, IA 50309-4155

(h15) 243~6596




10

11

12
13
14
15
16
‘17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

25

Jonathan Shefftz will be our expert dealing
with ecénomic benefit analyses, and he will present
evidence that Mr. Vos experienced éomewhere between
65 and 196 thousénd dellars, depending on whéther the
costs are delayed or whéther the costs are avoided
depending on when he puts his controls in place. To
this date, they have not been put in place.

Mr. Bryan Héyes is a fishe;ies biclogist
with the Department of Natural Resources of Iowa.
He's the one that performed the fish study dbwn in
ml1liot Creek, and he'll testify to the impacts the
feedlot rﬁnoff has had on this stream.

Cene Tinker is the animal feeding operations
coordinatof for the lowa Department of Natural
Resourées. He'll testify as to the réquiremehts té
be in this Iowa Plan and the background behind that
Towa Plan.

Fihally, Jeff Prier, IDNR’S inspector who
has been out to the facility, will testify that he
has been there when discharges have occurred. And he
will also testif? to the number of milestones that
Mr. Vos missed and, therefore, did not meet the
requirements of the Iowa Plan to receive that state
amnesty.

Again, Your Henor, the guestion in this case
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is‘not‘so much if the discharges occurred, the
question is when and how much. Thank you.‘

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Don't leave.
I'm going to ask a few questioné,of you.

MR. BREEDLOVE: Sure.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: In térms of

understanding EPA's perspective, you just said,

‘Mr. Breedlove, that there are-—no controls are in .

‘place even as of today?

MR. BREEDLOVE: -That is correct.
TH@A@MINESTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: None?
~ MR. BREEDLOVE: .No. Nothing adequate, Your
Honor. |

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Is it true at
least from--all of these gquestiens are from EPA's
perspective--Elliot Creek is a perennial stream?

MR. BREEDLOVE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JU@GE; There is no
dispute tﬁat it's'é perennial stream nor that it's
considered a water of the United States?

MR. BREEDLCVE: No. Respondent admitted it
was a water of the United States in his answer.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. And is
there any dispute that the unnamed tributary, in

fact, connects to Elliot Creek? Do the parties have
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any dispﬁté‘about that?

MR. BREEDLOVE: I do not‘believe there is
any dispute that it connects. |

| THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: And so the
Way you described it is the only issue is whether
thefe was, in‘fact, a discharge; correct?

MR. BREEDLOVE: Corréct.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: All right.
Thank you, Mr. Breedldve.

Let the fecord note I got the name straight
that time. Sorry about ghat.

Okay; Mr. McAfe@, are you ready?

MR. MCAFEE:‘ Yes, I am, Your Honor. If it
works for you, I would prefer to stay here.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:‘ That works
fine. If you would just at some point dﬁring your
opening statement just indicate to me wheth@r'you‘re
walving the objectioﬁ to the supplemented exhibits.

And I'm not suggesting, by the way, that you
should waive it. I did just throw that issue out as
to whether it_helps or hurts the Respondent, and you
would have é better hand;e'as to fﬁe impact,
potential impact of that. But just mehtion that for
me, please, at some point. Go ahead.

MR. McAFEE: T will, Your Honor. Thank you.
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Maybe I better do it right now before I forget The
Respondent does not waive thezr objection.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay.

MR. McAFEE: Your Honor, I don't have a
lengthy opening statem@nt, as I think I prefer to
just get into tﬁe evidence and let's take a look at
what this case provides.

But I do want to give you an overview for
answering any guestions you may have. I generally
agree with the EPA's opening statement. You might
suspect I have a few disagreements with them or we
wouldn't be here today, but T think Mr. Breedlové'has
cutlined it very well. |

The Respondent, our position is--and as we,
I think, clearly state in our answer——we do not
believe the Complainant has proven the most‘critical.
part of any discharge action under the Clean Water
Act, and that is that there was an addition of actual
pollutants to the water of the United States from a
point source.

Everything is there except the proof of an
actual discharge. And we believe all of the evidence
they are going to pr@sent——and i'll be the first to
admit, Your Honor, as Mr. Breedlove and EPA knows,

vour Honor, I like to call~--I like to look at it and
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not spend anybody's time arguing over things that are
apparent. |

They have evidence that gets very ciose, but
it doesn't get there. And I believe that's a very
high staﬁdard to meet, as set forth in the
Waterkeeper's decision. There has to be proof of
actual discharge of pollutants.

And theyw%again, we'll get into the
evidence, and that will be the time that we can go
througﬁ thaﬁ. “That is the critical element that is
missing. And I don't believe anything they are going
to present over the next few days that zlhavé seen to
this point makes that link; therefore, wé believé
that their case falls.

On the issue of-- Oné thing I would say,
Your Honor, I know you asked Mr. Breedlove during his
opening about thé controls that are in place and not
in place, and it is correct Respondent has not
constructed controlé as of this date.

'Respondent does have-- As the testimony
indicates, the Respondent now does have an NPDES
permit that has been issﬁed for Coptrols, and the
plans for the controls have been approved and are
reédy to go.

What Respondent has done is reduced his
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feedlot capacity as of--and we'll show this in the
evidence--as Qf Febﬁuary of 2007. His feedlot
capacity is below 1,000 head now, which means as of
then he is not a poinﬁ source,

So that is the approach Respondent has taken
to compliance pending the outcome of this caée.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: So as of this
point in time, at least, per he NPDES permit, the
Respondent is_in_coﬁpliance because he need not do
anything because he has a thousand head or less?

MR. MéAFEE: Correct; |

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay.

MR. McAFEE:l I think Your Honor is going to

hear a lot of evidence about, as Mr. Breedlove said,

‘water rolls downhill. But I guess-~-= I was & Tarmer

hefore I became an attorney, and we also know what

else rolls downhill, as the old saying goes.

But as I said, I think that’s the part of
their case that's missing; We don't dispute that
water flows downhill and that there are defined-
drainage bathways ffom that feedlot. You'll see
fhat. We're not going to argue with that.

The point 1s they have not ?roven what was
in that water when it reached the unnaméd tributary,

if it reached the water df the United States.
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I believe the EPA's poéition will be that
once something got into the unnamed tributary, it had
to get to the water of the United States.

I think that if you.look at scientifié
evidence, it routinely and regularly confounds
experts as to what should happen, but .doesn't happen.
And we believe that is the failure of the EPA case
here.

They will spend a lot of time shéwiﬁg us

what should happen. The computer modeling expert

will say, "Yeah, this should happen with all these

factors in place," but they don't have the proof that
it did happén. We'll get into all that in the
evidence.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: I take it
it's your perspective that while modeling is very
interesting, it isn't sufficient by itself to get you
there?

MR. McAFEE: That 1s correct, Your Honor.

We will have our expert to respond to the modeling
réport produced by EPA, Mr. Gerald Hentges, who is a
hydfologist with Térracon Consultants, a man with his

feet on the ground, out there in the field who does

work for .clients daily on these types of issues, and

he'll testify to that.
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We don't believe the model was ever intended

to be used as it is trying to be used here. I use

‘the word "the model." And that's not correct.

There's several models being used.

But we don't believe any of the models that
EPA is using in this case were ever 1ntended to be
used for enforcement purposes under the Clean Water
Act to say when it rained this much and that water
félllon this feedlot, that a pollutant did get into
this water of the United States. |

That is not the purpose of these models, and
Qé do not believe they shouid be used for that. But
we'll get int§ all that, of course.

The second part of the case--and again, I
agree with Mr. Breedlove--deals with the Jowa Plan.
e have a different perspective on that. We believe
Mr. Vos did ébmply with the Iowa Plan to the extent
that he could. We can't say that he had controls
constructed by the‘end of the Iowa Plan's time
period, this five-year timekpexiodl

Now, we will argue} as we've argued in our
answer, that it was not a hard and fast fiﬁe—year

time period; that the word "goal" was used. And

- we'll present evidence to that effect.

-

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay.
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MR. McAFEE: Befond that, there are reasons
why Mr. Vos did not have his controls in place by the
end of the five-year goal, as I have calléd it. EPA
will look at it differently.

The reasons W@rewmwe'li present evidence
that from the beginning of the ITowa Plan, both the
Iowa Department of Natura} Resources and the EPA in
Kansas City were made aware--and DNR agreed and I
bélieve EPA agreed, put that may be a source of
contention or a point of contention-~-that there were

real world limitations that were‘going'to‘affect

‘whether people could actually get that done.

And we will talk about those tﬁrough several
witnesses who worked for the Iowa Cattlemen's
Associétion at the time and were very instrumental
and very involved in the develcopment and
implementation of the Towa Plan.

Those real world limitations were getting
engineers that could get the work done in time and

the DNR getting their work done in time. And I

believe it will be--I was going to use the word

"undisputed.” I hesitate to say that because there
may be some dispute--but I think it's been recognized
by EPA that there were DNR delays here that ate up a

lot of this time period.

PETERSEN COURT REPORTERS
317 Sixth Avenue, Suite 606
Des Moines, IA 50309-4155

(515) 243-65%9¢6




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

i8

19

20

21

22
23
24

25

34

At the same time, Mr. Vos will be the first
to admit, as ﬁe iocooks back at that five~year.peribd,_
he might do something differently. But when you look
at What was‘happening at the time, he believes he did
everything he could to get things done within the
five-year period. It didn't happen, and that's why
we're here today. |

We believe hé shéuld still get the
protection of that five-year period--I call it the
five;year period--with the goal of the five-year
period? and we believe it should extend beyond that
périod.' He, in fact, did receive his NPDES perﬁit in
August of 2006.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Ckay. Go
ahead. I don't want you to feei you are neglected,
so I have a coupie'questions for you when you're
déne.

MR. McAFEE: Okay. The .economic benefit, I
understand how that's calculateq, and I understand
the reasoning behind it and penalty calculation, et
cetera. And we don't have an expert on that issue.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Well, you
hope never to get to that point. . But assuming

liability is established, then we're talking now

‘about a penalty; right?
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MR. MCAFEEE Right. I will have some
guestions for the EPA expert about the economic
benefit, how 1it's qaiculatéd.

| And I think, putting it in a nutshell, we
beliéve that one thing is costs have incréased
since-- Did Mr. Vos xeceivé an econcmic benefit by
not constructing, or is he being, to an extent,
peﬁaiized because costs have increased? If he would
have buillt it when EPA says he should have,‘it might
have been a lét cheaper than it's going to be now.
EPA may look at that differently.than I do.

No. 2, we believe the Iowa Plan needs to be
taken into account as to when you start fhat period
of noncompliance; and, as Mr. Breedlove méntion@d
several times, 1t was an amnesty‘program. And that
word will be used during_tgstimony  .It has been used
in the preh@éring exchanges.

and the guestion is during this period of
time, which we believe Mr. Vos complied with, but
let's say the EPA is correct that he didn't, in the
Court's eyes shouldn't that period be excluded in
figuring any economic benefit or, going back to the
heart of it, figure his periocd of nonéompliance.

So those are things we will both present.to

you, Your Honor, now and also in the posthearing
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briefs to summarize all of this and hopefully put it
in perspective for you.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Thank you.

MR. McAFEE: You have some questions?

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Yes. Looking
at Page 4 of Respondent's answer whére‘You reference
that theré-was no need to have an NPDES permit until
July 31, 2007, is thaﬁ still your position?

MR. McATEE: Yesg, it is;_Your Hono;. And
IT'm glad you brought that up because I kind of lumped
that into whether there was a discﬁarge, or not.

If Mr. Vos' facility—f And we will be
presenting evidence to this effect, that he was not
required to ha§e an NPDES permit under previous
regulations because those regulations only reguired a
permit 1if yourdischarged into a water of the United

States in & storm event less than the 25-year,

Z24~hour storm.

Mr. Vos' position--and we believe 1t shows

he did not do that, there's no evidence to show that

there was any discharge, in our opinion; therefore,

he was not required to have an NPDES permit until the
regulaticons changed in April of 2003--I want to make
sure I have my dates right--and that made him a newly

defined CAFO.
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As a newly defined CAFO, he ié not aﬁd was
notlrequired to have an.NPDES permit until July 31 of
2007. In fact, he received his on April--excuse me--
on August--I'm not going to give a date because.l may
not have it right here--but it was August of 2006
when  he received it, so he is in compliance with that
regulation.

But, in fact, Your Honor, gince I'filed my
answer that date has been extended again by the
federal EPA through regulations. To have an NPDES
permit in place for newly defined CAFOs is now

February of '09. 'So as we stand here today, he would

hot be, in my opinion--

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: No matter‘how
many head of cattle he had?

MR. McAFEE: Correct, as a ne@ly defined
CAFO. . EPA obviously disagreeé‘that he was.a newly
defined CAFO. | |

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGEQ .Just for the
record, clarification Qf the record, the parties
have--at least Mr. McAfee has done this——alluded.to a
CAFO. That stands for concentrated animal farming
operation or feeding operation? |

MRQ McAFEE: Yes, Your Honor, concentrated

animal feeding operation.
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THE ADMINiSTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: C-A-F~0,
Sometimes that's referred to when thé parties settle
a case. That's a different type of CAFO. That
refers to conseﬁt agreement and final order. So we
doﬁ‘t want any confusion about that. We're not
talking about that.

Qkay. Anything else, Mr. McAfee?

MR. McAFEE: I don't believe so, Your Honor.
T think we'll be ready to present our case.

THE ADMINESTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay}
Obviously, I have read through the Waterkeepers,
which is not an enforcement case. But I would~~ In
fact, I'm surprised that this wasn't dealt with in a
motion earlier in the céSe to rule on the impact of
that. But it will be sométhing you have to deal with
in thé posthearing briefs.

And you answered my other.questions, but one
thing that I want the parties.to help me out with
here is that--I mean I got the sense from heafing
Mr. Breedlove, as well as Mr. McAfee, that apparently
IJowa, through the IDNR, the Towa Department of
Naturai Resources—--is that right?

MR. McAFEE: Yes.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: --that there

seems to be a tension, that they're at odds, their
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position is at odds with;EPA's position because
Mr. Breedlo&e a couple times made empﬁasis that what
iowa says, that that does not pind the 5andé of the
EPA, the federal position.

So 1f there is some sort of a tension and
conflict there, I'd like that--I'd like you to assist
me 1in undersfanding that with the NPDES permit and
how they all mesh tégether.

| I mean, [ assume that Iowa is cone of these
states where EPA grants the authority to the state tToO
issuelthese permits?

MR. BREEDLOVE: Yes.,

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW jUDGE: Yat, maybe
this tension between EPA disagreeing with a position.
I don't know yet, bﬁt I'1]1 know that by the. end of
the week.

But I got the sense that there's some sort
of a conflict here between-~potential conflict

between what Iowa says and what that would mean and

FpA's different take on that, despite the fact of

having delegated to Iowa the authority to deal with
these'issues.

Do you Wan£ to .address that briefly or wait
on.it? |

MR. BREEDLOVE: Tf I may, Your Honor, I
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don't believe the tension is so much between EDNR‘and
EPA as much as.how Mr. McAfee and his client would
like it to be intezpreted.- I think the.simple fact

is that the Iowa Plan gave an amnesty to state law

for a period of five years for those facilities that

used the plan to come into compliance.

EPA was not a partner to that and didn;t
waive its right to apply f@derél law to it. I think
you'll see where‘theze is a tension between EPA and
IDNR is the agreement between IDNR and EPA that the
requirements of this plan weren't met; and,
therefore, he wouldn't have amnesty under the Iowa
pPlan nor under federal law.

So I don't believe there is any tension
vetween the State and Federal Government at this
point.. |

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. You
den't have to comment now, but if you want to,

Mr. McAfee, go ahead.

MR. McAFEE: Just briefly, Your Honor, that
I would say that while the Iowa Plan was, as we note
in our answer, in the Iowa regulations, and, no, you
will not find it in the federal regulations, our.
ﬁestimény that we will present will show that it was

everyone's understanding that the federal EPA ﬁas

PETERSEN COURT REPORTERS
317 Sixth Avenue, Suite 606
Des Moines, IA 50309-4155

(515) 243-6596




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

41
recognizing the Iowa Plan.

And, in fact, I think it's borne'out by the
fact that in this case Mr. Vos was not investigated
until May 31 of '06 following the end of the
five—year périod, which Iowa, of course, argueé goes
beyénd that.

Soc I believe EPA was, ap least informally,
going along with the Iowa Plan. They may disagree
with that; obviously. |

rBut the &ension between the DNR and EPA‘that.

I guess we see is--and the fact that was DNR doing

"its job to help producers ‘get into compliance with

the Iowa Plan and wéxe\there delays that were
attributable to DNR, and how is EPA récognizing those
versus delays that they are attributing to the
Respondent. .

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. We're
going to go off the record for a second.

J(Off—the—record discussion.)

THE ADMiﬁESTRATEVE LAW JUDGE: Back on tﬂe
record. |

Mr. Breedlove.or Mr. Ryan, are you ready for
yoﬁr first witness?

MR. RYAN: Yes, Your Honor. I would like to

call Mr. Lorenzo Sena to the stand, please.
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MR. MCAFEE: Excuse me, Your Honor. Could’
we go off the record forla minute.
THE ADMENISTRATEVE LAW JUDGE: sSure.
(Off~the-record discussion.)
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:_ Back on the
recofd.
LORENZO PAZ SENA,
called as a witness by counsel for the Complainant,
being first duly sworn by the Administrative Law
Judge, was examined and testified as follows:
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: State your
name and spell it for the court reporter.‘
“THE WITNESS; My name is Lorenzo Paz Sena,
L-0-R-E~N-2%~0 P-A-Z Sena, S-E-N-A.
‘DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. RYAN:

Q. Mr . Sené; would you please--you've already
stated your name for the record. Who's your
employer?.

A. United States Environmental Protection
Agency.

Q. and how long have you been with the EPA?

A. Abcut 10 yéars.

Q. What is your current job at EPAY

A. Current job, I'm the lead field chemist for
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the air monitoring tean.

Q. And how long have you been in that position?
A, Two years.
Q. Prior to becoming part of the air monitoring

team, what did you do at EPAY

A. T did NPDES inspections and I was the
manager -for the regiogal ambient fish tissue
mqnitoring program.

Q. What is an NPDES inspection?

A. An NPDES inspection is an inspection of--it
would include the waste water treatment facilities,
concentrated animal feeding operationé, storm water

inspections.

Q. And NPDES, what does that stand for?

A. National pollutant discharge elimination
system.

Q. Is that part of the Clean Water bct?

A. Yes, it is;‘

0. So you.were doing primarily Clean Water Act
inspections-—-

| A. Yes.

Q. Let me finish my question first before you
answer, and our court reporter will be much happier.
Okav. So you were doing Clean Watef hct

inspections for six of your eight years with EPA?
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. No, I've been with EPA 10 years. I've been

doing it for eight years.

Q. Eight years for the EPA?
A. Yes.
Q. So you spent eight years pricr to joining.

the alr group as an NPDES inspector; ig that correct?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. Cbuld you summarize your education for me,
please. |

A. T have a Bachelor of Science in bioloﬁy-and

Bachelor of Arts in chemistry.

Q. And you mentioned that one of the.things you
inspected as an NPDES inspector was feedlots;
Approximately how‘many CAFO inspections have‘yog done
as an EPA inspector? |

A.  Approximately 80.

0. Have you been to other CAFOs wﬁere you
weren't doing any inspection?

A. Yes, 1 have.

Q. Approximately how many CAFOs have you
visited?

A, Approximately 150.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGEE iet me just
stop vou. Are you saying CAFOs?

MR. RYAN: I always say CAFOs.
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THE ADMINISTRATEVE LAW JUDGE:. For the
reporter's benefit, he's talking about C-A-F-0.
.Go ahéad. |

MR. RYAN: Thank you, Your Honor. Good

point. T have to keep forgetting my Idaho roots and

rémémber I'm in Iowa now.
BY MR. RYAN:

o So are you-- Based on your_approximateiy 80
inspections, 150 site visits of CAFOs, would you say

you're generally familiar with.feedlots and other

setups?
A. Yes, 1 am.
Q. Are you familiar with the-- Do you have any

special training in feedlots?
A. No, I don't.
0. 1 mean, have you done any--have you had any

training on nutrient management plans?

A. Yes, I have.

Q. Are you familiar with the Vbé case?
A. Yes, 1 am. |

Q. And how are you familiar with it?
A I inspected ﬁhe facility.

Q. When did you inspect it?

A.  May 31, 2006. -

Q. Would you please-— In front of you there is

PETERSEN COURT REPORTERS
317 Sixth Avenue, Suite 606
Des Moines, IA 50309-4155

(515) 243-6596




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

46
a binder. Would you‘please turn To Exhibit 23.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: 23, Mr. Ryan?
MR. RYAN: Yes, sir; 23. That would be
Complainant's 23.

BY MR. RYAN:

0. Do you recognize this document, Mr. Sena?
A. ves, I do.

Q. What is it?

A. It's my inspection report.

MR. RYAN: And just for the record, Youx
Honor, this is one of the exhibits which was not
stipulated td. |
" THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Thank you.
BY MR. RYAN:
Q; Turning to Page 8 of 8 on Exhibit 23, do you
see that on the bottom of the page where it says

"inspector's signature"?

B, Yes, I do.

0. . Is that your gsignature?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. The date there, June 8, 2006, what does that

date represent?
A. That is the date I completed the report.
G. Okay. And going back to the first page of

the report, I believe you testified earlier that you
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did your inspection on May 31, 2006. Is that the
date reflected on theé first line on the top of Page 1

of 8 of Exhibit 237

A. Yes, it is.
Q. And there are a number of attachments to
this inspection'report. Do you see starting Jjust

after Page 8 of 8 there's a letter dated August 19,

1991, and at the tbp of the page it says-—-someocone has

n

written in "attachment No. 1. Do you see that?

A. Yes, 1 do.
Q Whose handwriting is that "attachment No. 1"7?
A. That is my handwriting.

Q. There are other various docﬁments”which af@
attached. ‘At the bottom right-hand corner'of this
attachment No. 1, it says "Page 1 of 27.7 Did you
write that there?

A. Yes, I -did.

Q. And then this gdes through-~-back to Page 27
of 27. Can you tell me what these documents are in

general without going into any s@ecifics? Where did

you get these and why are they in here?
A. I cbhtained copiés of these docum@nté when I
went to the DNR field office No. 3.
. And why did you go to the DNR field officd?

A. Just for an idea of the regulatory history
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Q. Is that something that you do generally
before inspecting facilities?

AL Yes, 1 do.

Q. So before goihg out and inspecting Mr. Vos

feedlot; you went to the IDNR office and looked at

documents. Are these sone of the documents you
looked at?

A, Yés, they are.

Q. And.is it your précticé.to copy such
documents and put them in your inspection ;@port?

A. Yes, it 1is.

0. And is this all the documents that were in
the TDNR files or just ones you picked out?

A, Just ones I‘picked out.

Q. Okay. And did you discuss any of these

documents with the IDNR staff when you copled them?

A. No, I did not.

S Q. ao then let's go toO attachment No. 2 real

48

¥

quick, which is the next page. It says "Page 1 of 4,7

so it's a photograph of a handwritten spiral
noteboock. Do you see that?
A. Yes, 1 do.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Which page

are you on, Mr. Ryan?
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MR. RYAN: This would be attachment No. 2 to
exhibit 23. It starts just after page 27 cof 27 of
attachment 1.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay.

MR. RYAN: It's a color photograph of a
spiral bound notebook.
BY MR. RYAN:

Q. Did you take that photograph, Mr. Sena?

A. Yes, I did.
Q. And the same thing with the other

photographs in attachment No. 27

A. ves, I did.

Q. Did you take those-- When did you take
those photographs?

A. on the inspéctibn day, May 31, 2006,

Q. Mofing on to attachmént No. 3, which 1is
after the last photé attachment No. 2, is that your
ﬁandwriting again at the top of attachment No. 37

Al Yes, 1t is.

Q. It says "attachment 3.7 And I believe
that's’ a two-page attachment, nge 1 and 2 of--excuse
me~--1 of 2 and 2 of 2, followed by attachment 4, |
which it sayé at the bottoﬁ right~hand corner to
attachment 4 to Exhibit 23_r Page 1 of 15. Do you see

that?
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A. Yes.
Q. Is that QCUr handwriting at the top and
bottom of that page? ”
L. Yes, 1t is.
Q. and if you go back thrbughva series of
photographs that end at Page 16 of 16, after that is

attachment No: 5. Do you see that after the last

photograph?

A, Yes.

Q. Last.photoqraph of attachment 4 is Page 16
of 16. Then We‘re at attachment 5, which appears tO

be a form which says "United States Environmental

Protection Agency confidentiality notice." Do you

see that?

A, Yes, I do.

Q. Ts that your handwriting at the top on this
form?

A. Yes, it is.

0. -'Is that your signature in the middle of the

pagé of attachment 57

A, No, it is not.
Q. Whose signature is that?

AL Mr. Lowell Vos'.

Q. Did he sign that during your ingpection?
A. Yes, he did.
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.Q. On the date there it says "May 30th." Aﬁd I
believe the first page of youz‘inspection says "May
31." Did you visit with Mr. Vos the day before, or

was this the--why is there different dates?

A. I just messed up On the date.

Q. S0 you wrote that date in of May 30th?

A, iYeS.

.Q. ﬁut‘it was actually May 31lst?

A. Yes.

Q. Goisg-on to attachment No. © to Exhibif 23~--

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Let me Jjust
stop for a second. Off the record. | |
{0ff-the-record discussion.)
BY MR. RYAN:

. O. Attachment No. 6, do you see that?

A.  Yes, I do.
Q. Okay. And again, is that your handwriting

at the-top of the page?
A. Yes, it is.
Q. That says “attachment 6." Okay. So we have

Exhibit 23 of your inspéction report along with siX

attéchments. You prepared this entire report?
A, Yes, I did.
Q. Along with the attachments to ite
A. Yes. l
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MR. RYAN: Your Honor, at this time I would
like to move Exhibit 23.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. EPA
Exhibit 23, which has been offered for purpose of
identification, is now offered.

Do you have an objection,'Mr. McAfeé?

MR. McAFEE: Your Honor, f do. And it does
not go to the entire document. As the Court is
aware, there were pzevious.documents that weré not
stipulated.to. And this document, this exhibit,
contains some of those documents. So that's why‘I
had to object to this one.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE.LAW‘JUDGE: Okay. ‘I

MR. McAFEE: My objection is to Pagell of 27
in attachment No. 1. |

.THE ADMiNISTRATIVE LAW 5UDGE: Let me Jjust
gét to that now.

MR. McAFEE: sure.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Page 1 of 27.

MR. McAFEE: And Page Z of 27 and Page 3 of

27,

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: okay. So 1,
5 and 3 of attachment 1, which contains 27 pages. S5O

what's the nature of your objection, if it's one
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objection to all three of those pages, Mr. McAfee?
. MR. McAFEE: VYes, it is, Your Honor. And it

relates to the--well, it's actually the Cutler

decision regarding--and I use the term "Cutler

decision.™ It's an Administrative Law Judge decision
on the Clean Water Act appeal, and it relates to
calculation of the penalty and what matters can be
taken into account.

In eséence, the nature of my objection ié
this is regarding a permit that was issued to Mr. Vos
in 1991, an NPDES permit. B

Mr. Vos did not construct -pursuant To that
permit, and the g?A is alleging.that that shows scnme
sort of pattern of noncompliance on his part. And I

believe that that is outside of the statute of

limitations period,'and the Cutler decision discusses

that.
pursuant to that decision--which the

Ehvironmental Appeals Board did overturn the decision
specifically in that case, but that was a wetlands
field case, is my understandingT We are not in that
type of case here, we are‘in a Clean Water Act appeal
here.

| And I believe based on the Cutler decision

and the analysis that considering something iike this
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in any penaity phase of this hearing would be
inappropriate since it's butside of the statute of
limitations period.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay.

Mr. Ryan, do you want to respond to that?

MR. RYAN: Yes, Your Honor. The Cuflez case
was my case, so I know quite a bit ébout it.

Yes, Mr. McAfee is correct. We were
successful in having Judge Nissen reversed at the AB
lével on his holding that nothing outside the statute
of limitations should be considered as one of the
Section 309(G) (6) penalﬁy factors. That is'therlaw.

You can go outside the statute of
;imitations for purposes of showing--

THFE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: You're
speaking.too guickly and you re mumbling.

MR. RYAN: I'm sorry. The law ls.clear that
we ' can go outside.the statute of limitétions for
looklng at the prlor history of v1olatlons, which is
one of the statutory pena]ty factors under Section
309(G) (6) .

And the fact that Mr. McAfee attempted to
dlstzngulsh t+he case on the grounds that ;t was a
wetlands case, that is of no moment. EL wag a Clean

Water Act case with the exact same statutory penalillty
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factors applied to wetlands cases as to these cases.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. Here's

my ruling. I'm going to defer making a ruling on

- this, giving Mﬁ. MchAfee the opportunity, if he

wishes, to file this in the posthearing brief as one

of the issues, how it is that this should be

distinguished from the cutler case or any other
iheory that you have.

And so as of now it's in, but with the
provision that I can remove it if I'm persuaded by
arguments which may be raised by Mr. McAfee post-
hearing. That's'my xuling; | |
| MR. McAFEE: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Qkay. Were

there any other pages within EPA Exhibit 237

MR. McAFEE: ©No, Your Honor. "'So that is the
extent of my objeﬁtion, I do not object to the
remainder of the exhibit.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. So©
with the prOVlSlOHS that I just related to the
possible rev131t1ng, Complainant's EPA Exhibit 23 1is
admitted.

(Complainant's Exhibit 23

was received in evidence.)
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BRY MR. RYAN:

. Mr. Sena, describe for us generally what you
do when you show up at an inspection for a CAFO and
how.you prepare yoﬁr report. |

A. Okay; Generally what I do prior to the .
iﬁspection, actually, I call the producer and ask
them 1f they havé ény piosecurity protocols ana also-
to schedule an appointment for>an'inspection.

And then when I do show up at the facility,
I just nbrmally do a facility walk-through, walk
around the perimeter of the site, and then after thét
I go tﬁrough any paperwork the facility has.

Q. Okay. And then after ybu conduct the
inspection, when do you start documenting 1it?

A, Well, I start documenting during the

inspection.

Q. Okay .
A. and I take with me an .aerial photograph of
the site. It just makes it much easier. I take

notes on the aerial photograph. And then I also take

pictures and take notes on where the pictures were

taken. When I get back to the motel room that night,
I label.my photos.
Q. So you're labeling them when it's all still

fresh in your mind?
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AL Yes. |

Q. Now, did you reach a conclusion based on
your inspection of Mr. Vos' facility on May 31, 2006,
regarding whether he was discharging, or not?

A, ves, I made a conclusion. My conclusion was
that he had over a thousand head oﬁ site at the time
of the inspection, these cattle were maintained for a
period greater than 45 days, and there were no
postharvest residues or crops iﬁ'the production area
at the time.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:l There were no
postharvest? |

THE WITNESS: Yes.

‘THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okavy.

A, {Continuing) And also that the facility.had‘
no controls, and there was evidence as to discharge
in the waters of the U.S.

0. So the first three elements I believe you

mentioned were the 45 days, the number of head of

cattle and the postharvest residue or vegetative
growth. Are those all part of the definition of what

is a CAFO?

A. Yes, they are.
Q. So you concluded that he was a CAFO?
A. Yeg, I did.
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Q. And vyou mentioned evidence of discharges.

Let's go through your report. Let's look at Page 1

of B. Do you have that in front of you?
A, Yes.
Q. Looking at the approximately lower half of

the page, there's a--the second to the last line
before the text, there is a question that sa?s, "How
iong has this facility been operating at this
location?" And I believe you wrote "31 years." DO

you see that?

A. Yes,'I do.
Q. and where did you get_that pnumber 31 years?
A, Mr. Vos told me.
o. Okay. And higher up it says "length of time
in current position, 61.years." Again, where dié you

get that number?

A. Mr. Vos told me thét aiso,

Q.. Now? in the text below 731 years" two lines
down there 1s .a senteﬁca that says; "The facility was

issued NPDES permit No. IA 0078701 on August 19,

1991." Do you see that?
A. Yesg, 1 do.
0. Aand it says, "The permit has since expired.”

What is the relevance to you of an NPDES permit for

+his faclility?
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A. The NPDES permit outlines the requirements

of the facllity to keep as far as record keeping and

as well as controlling runoff from the feedlot or

production area.
Q. and why did you note in here‘that there was
an expired permit from 19917
AL That's what 1t says on attachment 1 on the
NPDES permit, construction pezmit.
0. Okay. Now, is that NPDES construction
permit actually part of your Exhibit 237
A. Yes, the conétruction permit is.
| 0. Okay; Excuse me. The NPDES permit,'is'that
inclqd@d in your Exhibit No. 237
A. No, it ié not.
Q  Could you pleéase turn to Ekhibit g .
MR. RYAN: Again, for the purposes of the
record, this exhibit was not stipulated rto.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay.'
BY MR. RYAN:
Q. Under Exhibit 9 we have one of the letters.

which I believe is found in your attachment No. 1 to

your Exhibit 23 inspection report. Do you see that?
A. Yes, 1 do.
Q. and then the second page of Exhibit 9 is a

state of Iowa Department of Watural Resources
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construction permit. Do you see that?
A. Yeg, I do.
Q. Third page would be that construction

permit, as well. And then the fourth page of Exhibit
9 is a document entitled at the top "Authorization
from the Iowa Department of Natural Resocources to

discharge into the National Pollutant Discharge

Elimination System." Do you see that?
A Yes, 1 do.
Q. Ts that the NPDES permit that you are

referencing on Page 1 of vyour inspection report,
which is Exhibit 237
A. Yes, it 1s.
0. And did you review this permit prior to
doing your inspection?
Al No, I did not.
0. Okay; But this is the-- This is the permit
that you reference‘on Pagé 17
AL Yes.
MR, RYAN: Your Honor, at tﬂis time I'd move
Exhibit 9 into evidence.
THE ADMINTSTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okavy. As
alluded to earlier, this exhibit has been offered fpr
purposes of identification, EPA oOr Complainant's

Exhibit 9.
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Do you have an obﬁection, Mr. McAfee?‘

MR. McAFEE: Yes, Your Honor. The objection
I have is the same objection I had to the portion of
Exhibit 23. 50 T - won't take the Cburt‘s time unless'
you have a gquestion for me.

| THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: No. S50 my

rﬁling will be consisteﬁt, same thing Qill apply.
The exhibit ié admitted subject to posthearing

argument as to why aspects of it should not be

considered by the Court. And that apparently would

involve some sort ofwwnét limiting your argument, but
some sort of distinction basié from the Environmental
Appeais Board in the Cutler case. That's‘myhfuling.
Exhibit 9 is in with those provisos.

(Complainant's Exhibit 9

was received in evidence.)
BY MR. RYAN:

Q. Mr. Sena, please turn to Page 7 of 8 of
Exhibit 23, which is your inspection report, Page 7
of 8.

A Okay.

Q. And d¢ you see in approxiﬁately the middle
of the page there's a pen number with current numbér
of cattle? Do you see that?

A. Yes, I do.
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Q. At the bottom of the current number of
cattle column.it says'2,221. Is that the number of
nead that were present on the date of your

inspection?

A. “Yes.

Q. And how do you know that numbér?

A, Mr. Vos told me.

Q. Now, feferring back to Page'l of your

inspection report, the first‘narrétive paragraph at
the.bottom of the page, the second to the last
senténce you say, "He showed ‘us these records, and I
bhotographed them, and they are included as
attachm@nt 2. These records sﬁow the number of head
neér the end of 2005 and are close toO tﬁe number of.
head on site at thé time of the iﬁspection."

And these, I believe, are the ?hotographs of
the spiral-bound notebook vou're referring to in -

sttachment No. 2 that we discussed earlierx in your

testimony. Do vyou recall that?
A. Yes.

Q. Now, why did you mention the 2005 head count

for the feedlot?

A.  Because there were no records of the number
of cattle in 2006.

Q. No records other than what Mr. Vos, told you?
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A. Yes.

Q. And those photographs that we see of the
spiral notebooks in attachment 2, did those indicate
to you how many head were present the year before?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, do thQée photcgraphs'include all of the

pens at the feedlolL?

A. No, they do not.
Q. When I say "those photographs," I'm
referring to attachment No. 2. So were there more--

Is it your understanding there would be more cattle

there than were present in these four photographs?

A, Yes.
C. Let's go to Page 2 of 8 of your inspection
report, which is Fxhibit 23. Approximately~w Let's

1ook at the top of the page again. There the_number
2,221 is present for beef'cattle; Does that reflect

the number of cattle that were present when you

inspected?
A. Yes, it does.
0. The capacity shows 3,000 head. Where did

you get that number from?

AL That was provided to me by Mr. Vos.

0. 5o he told you he has a capacity of 3,0007
A. Yes.
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0.. T,et's look at No. & down below under B again
on Page 2 of 8 of Exhibit 23. It says; "Has the
facility had contact with‘othef agenciles regérding
current construction and operation of the LWCF
associated with the operation?" What is LWCE?

A, Tt stands for Livestock Waste Control
Facilities.

Q.. Would that be.the t?pes of controls that
would preveﬁt‘runoff?

A. Yes.

Q. And when you visited the site, did you see

‘aﬁy runoff controls?

A. No, I did not.

0. ' What do runoff controls typically look like
at a CAFO?

A. Normaily there's diversion berms which lead
to a sedimentation basin. Tﬁen the sedimentation
hasin discharges tg an impcundment basin, and from
there these ligquids are normally land applied.

Q. and so did you see any berming at the site?

A, No, .I did not. There was one terrace around
the west end of<ﬁhe site.

0. Other than the terrace at the west end of

the site, did you see any perming on, say, the north

~end of the site?
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A, No. .

Q. Cr on the south end of the site?

A. No.

Q. and if water were to flow off this feedlot

to the north of the house, was there anything to
prevent it from fléwing off the feedlot?

AL No, there was not.

Q. Now, under No. © you wrote, yes, that the
facility had had contact with another agency about an
LWCF. How do you know that?

A. It is in the attaﬁhment No. 1. I noticed
that during the file review. It would be Page 19 of
27 of attachment 1. |

Q. And did you ask Mr. Vos whether he planned
to put in any controls? | |

A. T don't recall, but I‘m‘éure I did.

Q. Let's look at the phofos you took at the
siﬁe: Let's go through those. |

Let's turn to attachment No. 4, thch is a
16-page document attached to Exhibit 23, your
inspection report. And Page 1 of 16--

MR.lRYAN: May we go off the reco;d for just
a second, Your Honor, so I can set up the 1ight pro?

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JﬁDGE: Sure. Off

the record.
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{Off»the—recérd discussion.)

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW SUDGE: Back on the
record. In an off-the-record discussion, for my own
clarification, I wanted to be sure the record shows
tﬁat this witness, thié first EPA witness, ﬁis last
name is Sena, S-E~N-A, Mr. Sena. Correct?

| THE WITNESS:  Yes.
BY MR. RYAN:
Q. Mr. Sena, were you accompanied on this
inspection by ahyone else from EPA?
A. Mr. Chris Goschen;
D, But you prepared this report} not Mr. Goschen;
correct? |
A. Yyes, 1 did.

MR. RYAN: For purposes of the record, the
witness hés stepped outside the witness box and is
now standing at the iight pro where we will go
through some of the photographs that are contained in
attachment % to Exhibit 23.

Tf you could zoom in just a little bit,

Mr. Sena, please, for those old guys like me who have
bad eyes. Thank you.

. Now,‘explain to us, please, what Page 1 of
16 of.éttéchmeht 4 is.

A. It is an aerial phétograph which I prepared
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for this inspection report. "And it indicates the

runoff paths, as well as the location that the
photographs were taken.
Q. Okay. If you could zoom in just a little

bit so we could see those small numbers in the round

circles. There we go. Thank you.

30, for example, the light tan area, is that‘
the feedlot? |

A. Yes, 1t is.

Q. And the darker green around it, is that farm
fields and pastures?

A. Yes, i1t is.

Q. Now, there's a number-- Around the
perlphery, approximately the periphery of the light
tan area, the feedlot, there are a number of small
numbers, 1 through 14. Do you see those little

numbers?

A. Yes, I do.
Q. What do those numbers represent?
A, Those represent the direction and photo

number of the photos taken and attached in attachment

No. 4.

Q. So if, for example, looking at the top

left-hand corner of what we see on the screen right

now, No. 1, which is right on top of that blue line,
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what does the blue line represent?

A. That represents the unnamed tributary to
Ellict Creek.

Q. and that No. 1, 1is that picture No. 1 which
is found at Page 2 of 16 of the attachment 47

A. Yes, 1t is.'

Q. ~ And the little arrow that we see on No. 1 on
page 1 of 16 that's peointing approximately TO the
north, is that the direction you.were facing when you
took ﬁhe.picturé? |

A. Yes, it is.

Q. Now, all of tﬁe attached pilctures to
attachment 4, did you trake all of those photographs
yourself? |

A. ves, I did.

Q. Okay.. So going back to FPage 1 of 16, you've
identified where you took ﬁhe attached photographs to
these numbers and you also have a nunber of arrows
pointing in different directions.

There are also a number--the feedlot itself
is broken into apparently subsections or pens. Could
you tell us what thése are, what‘the numbers
represent.

‘A, Those numbers represent the pen numbers,

THE, ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JULDGE : The what now?
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THE WITNESS: Pen numbers.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:. P-E-N?
THE WITNESS; Yes.
BY MR. RYAN:

Q. How did you know which pens were numbered
which number?

A, Mr. Vos told me..

0. and then it's a little bit hard to see on
this ﬁlow—up, put in the picture there is a dotted
yellow line approximately'bisécting the feedlot from
left to_right or sast to west. Do you see that?

A:‘ ‘Yes, I do.

MR. RYAN: Is Your Honor able to see 1t?

THElADMENISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: I'm able to
see it both on my Exhibit 1 of 16 for rxhibit 23, as
well as on the screen.

MR. RYAN: Thank you.
BY MR. RYAN:

Q. and what does that dotted yéllow line
represent?

A, It represents the top of the hill, the ridge

line which runs through the pens.

Q. s would that be the high point of the pens?
A. Yes, 1t is.
Q. Now, generally speaking, what's th@'local
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topography like here? |

A. The feedlot is up on top of 2 hill, and it
gradually slopes towards these drainage ways which
can be seen in the aériél photograph.

0. Is the unnamed tributary which 1is
represented by a blue line on Page 1 of 16 of
attachment 4, is that even with the elevation of the

feedlot or is it uphill or downhill?

A, Tt's downhill.
Q. okay. So on Page 1 of 16 we see a number of
arrows pointing in different directions. What do

those arrows represent?

A.‘ Those arrows‘represent runoff paths.

Q. And how did you determine which way water or
the runoff patb would go?

A. I aketched these on an aerial photograph
while I was'doing the facility walk—thrcugh.

Q. And was that based on your eyeball
observations at the time at the site--

A, Yes, it was.

Q. ~--while on the ground? And when you say &
;runoff path,"” what do you ﬁean by "runoff path"?

A. What I mean by runoff path is a well defined
drainage way discharging from thé pens into this

field shown just south of the pens and north of the
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pens.

0. 2o if it were to rain on the day you were
there, wouild you éxpect to see water flowing in the
direction of these arrows?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. and if there were snow on the ground and it
melted,.which way would it flow;when it melted?

A. Directions of these arrows.

Q. 5o let's talk about the north side of the
property first. Approximately where the ﬁumber 14
is, which is right on the street, you've labeled
100th étreet. 'Do you see that?

A Yes.

C. That's approximately the northeast corner of
the feedlot. And picture No. 14 is facing north.

Why did you take that pidture there?

A.‘ To éhow a drainage path towards thelunnamed
tributary of Elliot Creek.

Q. That drainage path, is that something you
were able to identify with your'own eyes on the

ground?

A. Yes, 1t was.
Q. So that was a drainage path to the north.

Were there any other drainage'paths off of the

feedlot that you identified? . . .
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A. Yes, there were.

Q. Which other ones did you see?
A. T saw one drainage path on the west side of

+he feedlot, as well as on the south side of the

~feedlot.

Q. Okay. Let's talk about the west side of the
feedlot. The photo No. 15, would that be

representative‘of what you saw on the_west‘side?

A, Yes, 1t would be.
Q. = Okay. We'll get to these photos in a minute
and look at them in more detail. I'm Just trying to

get an overview at this peoint.

So you witnéssed.the discharge path to the
west, a discharge path to the north and then you also
mentioned one to the souﬁh. PDescribe the one to the
south for me, p;ease.

.A. | south consisted of four differeﬂt discharge
paths, and théy ran frém the pens To & low spot,
which was also a wéll defined drainage way towards
the unnamed tributary to Elliot Creek.

Q. And is that depicted by that red liﬁe which

runs approximately cast-west just to the south of the

feedlot?

A, Yes, it 1is.
Q. Now, you mentioned there were four drainage
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paths that you observed. Again, these are not.things
you necessarily identified back in the.lab, these
were things you identified while out in the field;

correct?

B Correct.
Q. And there's one there that has photos No. 5
and 6 next to it. 1Is that one of the four drainage

paths that you identified?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. 'Okay. And then photos 7 and 8, is that
ancther one?

A. Yes.

0. Okay. How about-- What are the other two
remaining drainage paths that you identified?

A. Where photos 9 and 10 were taken, aé-wéll as
where photos 11 and 12 were taken.

Q.. Ckay. Let's go ahead-and rurn to Page 2 of
16 of attachm@nt 4 to Exhibit 23.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Before he
does that, sometimes I try not tTo ask foo many‘
gquesticns, but I want to ask this before you move
along, Mr. Sena.

Looking still at 1 of 16, if‘I look where
photographs 11 and 12 were taken, those two circles,

and using the scale in the bottom left, it looks like
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it's--and I don't havé a ruler--but we're talking
about, what, a distance of a couple of miles beforé
in theory this runoff would reach the unnamed
tributary, or am I wrong about the sense of distance?

THE WITNESS: If you look on photo number--

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: You can't

tell me from this right here what that distance would

be?
THE WITNESS: It's approximately .7 miles—w
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay.
THE WITNESS: ~~from the point where No. 12
was taken;
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: A1l right.
Go ahead, Mr. Ryan.
BY MR. RYAN:
Q. Turn guickly, Mr. Sena, to Page 4 of 8 of
your inspection report--
A. 4 of 8. Okéy.
Q. -~=-under E, receiving,surface water. Do you

see that?

A. Yes.
Q. Ckay. Approximatély halfway down through
Section D there on Page 4 of 8 it says, "Runoff from

portions of pens 2 and 3 flows southwest

approximately 0.4 miles through a well defined
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drainage way to a point where it flows to the unnamed

1

tributary to Elliot Creek.' You say, "See attachment
No. 4, photos 5 and 6.7

The next one down references a 0.55 miles.

Are those estimates'you made of distance from the

pens to the unnamed tributary during your inspectibn?
A. Yes. T used the measure tool on the US3GS
national‘map to get those distances.

THE ADMINISTRATiVE LAW SUDGE: Ckay. Thank
you. It gives me a sense of perspective. |
RY MR. RYAN: |

Q. Let's go back to attachmentré.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Attachment 4
has howlmany pages?

MR. RYAN: Attachment 4 has 16 pages.
Thej're marked in the lower right-hand corner. It's
attachmeht 4 to Exhibit 23. We're now at Page 2 of
16 of attachment 4--

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay.

MR. RYAN:: ~-to his inspection report.

BY MR. RYAN:

Q. Now, I think you testified before that photo
No. 1 was represented on Page 1 by a small No; 1
pointing té‘the north. Do you recali thaé?

A Yes, I did.
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Q. So this photograph, then, is not taken on

the feedlot, 1s it?

A. No, it 1is not .
Q. What does this photograph show?
A. This éhoWs the unnamed tributary to Elliot

Creek'upstream of 100th Street.

0. So are we looking north in this photo No. 1
on Page 2 of 167

A. We're looking northeast.

Q{‘ Okay; And was the uﬁnamed‘tributary flowing
at the time?

A. Yes, 1t was.

Q. Is that water that one can see there in thé

picture in the tributary in approximately the bottom

center?
A. Yes, 1Lt is.
0. And why did you take that picture?

A. To show what the unnamed tributary to fFlliot
Creek locked like. |

0. Okay. And let's §o back to the photolNo.
14. We stafted off talking about the discharge to
the north. That's depicted on theioverview map on
Page 1 of 16 as No. 14. So iet's turn to photo No. lé.
Photo No. 14 is found at Page 15 of 16 of attachment 4.

Tell us what you see here.
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. This is the discharge end of the culvert

which crosses under 100th Street.

Q. And you said you saw during your inspection
a discharge point. Is that visible in this picture?
. Yesg, it is.

MR. RYAN: With Your Honor's permission, 1
have left a Sharpie up on the witness stand. I'd

like to have the withess mark this exhibit, and this

exhibit would go to the court reporter and would

pecome the official exhibit. And either the court
reporter can make copies for eveﬁyone or we can take
it on} whatever works for Your Hohor.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Let's go of £
the record on that.

(0ff-the-record discussion.)

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Back on the
record. Just before you move on; Mr. Ryan, I want to
make sure I'm following this.

When‘you were talking, Mr. Sena, a minute
ago about photograph 1, which is on Page 2 of i6~—do
you have that? |

THE WITNESS: Yes, I do.

THEE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: -~and that

photograph 1 is the same one that's marked as a photo

on—~what is that other number? Ts that the same--
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THE WITNESS: The number would correspond to
the number and arrow on Page 1.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: What page 1is
that_on?

THE WITNESS: 1It's Page 1 of attachment 4.
1+ should be right before all the photos.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. That's
fine. But that's what it refers to?

THE WITNESS: Actually, it should be behind
that--behind tge one you have alréady openéd to.
Theré should be a topo map.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: I have this.
Let's go'off the record. -

(0ff-the-record discussion.}

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Let's go back
on the.record. Go ahead, Mr. Ryan. I just had a
clarifiéation about finding these. It's paft of
éttachment 4, Page 1 of 16 within attachment 4, that
photograph that you just alluded to, that photograph
being photo 1 on 2 of‘16 of the'samé attachment. Go
ahead.

BY MR. RYAN:
Q. Okay. So you testified earlier about the
discharge to the north from photo 14.which is found

at'Page 15 of 16 of attachment 4. Could you-- Is
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the unnamed tributary to Elliot Creek visible in this

photo?
A. Yes, it is.
Q. And could you write an arrow indicating

approximately the location of the unnamed tributary.

A. (Witness marks on exhibit.)

0. And write the letters "UNT" for unnamed
tributary.

A. (Witness marks on exhibit.)

Q. and you stated that you saw a discharge

point coming off of Mr. Vos' feedlot. 1Is that
visible here in this photogréph?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. And could you circle the feature you're

referencing.

A. {(Witness marks on exhibit.)

Q. Could you write on the right—ﬁand gside "flow
path.”

A. .(Witneés_marks on exhibkbit.)

Q. Now, this flow path that we're lookiﬁg at in

photograph 14 1s on the far side of the road from
Mr. Vos' facility, disn't it?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. And how does the water or the-- Was &hat

flow path caused by water?
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A. Yes, 1t was.’

Q. Okay. And how did the water get from
Mr. Vos' feedlot to this Spot you see 1in photo 147

A. If we look at photo 13 of attachment--

é. éhoto 13 would.belatIPage 14 of 16 of
attachment 47

A. Yes. --it shows the iow point near--on the
south side of 100th Street. There i1s a culvert which

crosses at the point where that bush is near the

‘center of the page, and it crosses to almost the

'point where the telephone pole is on the right-hand

side of the page.

Q. Could you put a little arrow there and write
in "culvert" where yoﬁ saw the culvert.

A. (Witness marks on exhibit.) "

Q. And is there—¥ So is it your testimony -that
if it rained, water would flow from this portion of
the feedlot intq that culvert?

A, Yes. |

0. And were there any berms or any kind of
control devices to prevent water from flowing off
this portion of the feedlot into that culvert?

A. No, there was not.

Q. And did that culvert exit on the other side

of the road?
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A. Yes, it did.

0. And is that exit from that'culvert on the
other side of the roadway depicted in photo 14 at
Page 15 of 167

AL Yes, it is.
THE ADMIﬁiSTRATEVE LAW JUDGE: Let's go off
the record for a moment. |

(Off—the~£ecord discussion.)

MR. RYAN: For purposes of ﬁd@ntifiéation,
just for the record, photos No. 13 and 14 of
attachmént 4 to Exhibit 23, I would offer these into
evidence as Exhibits 23A and 23B.

and 1if I could just--with Your Honor's
@ermission, Mrl Sena wouldrwrite "23@" on photo
No. 15--excuse me--photo No. 14 at Page 15 of 16.

THE WITNESS: At the top?

‘MR. RYAN: Write “QBA" on.fhat page.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: That's good.

MR. RYAN: On photq No. 13, the previous
page, 14 of 16, attachment 4, would you write "23B."

(Witness marks on exhibit.) |

MR. RYAN: .So for purposes of
identification, these would now bé'kncwn as 23A and
B,-and I would offer them at thié time inte evidence.

MR:. McAFEE: No objection, Your Honor.
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THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. That's
a‘good'system to-be working with now. 23A and 23B
without objection are admitted.
(Complainant's Exhibits 23A.and-23B
Qere'received in evidence.)

MR. RYAN: For purpose's of clarification,

the ofiginal 23 would be unmarked. Thank you.

BY MR. RYAN:

Q. So that's the discharge to the north. Let's

talk about the discharge to the west, which I believe

is depicted on Page 1 of 16 of attachment 4 as photo
No. 15. Is that corﬁect?

A. It is 16 of 16, photo No. 15.

0. Photo No. 15, which is at Page 16 of 16.
What does th;s photo show? | |

A. This photo shows the discharge path on the
west end of the facility that does not flow towards
the sediment basin, what I call the sediment basin.

0. And did this dischargé point that you see in

this photograph, did it reach the unnamed tributary?

A, Yes, 1t did.

0. Where. is the unnamed tributary in this
phoﬁograph?

A.. It ié-w Do you want me to mark it?

Q. Could you mark it like we did before with an
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arrow saying "UNT" for unnamed tributary.
A. {Witness marké on exhibit.)
Q. Is the unnamed.tributary visible at the

left~hand margin of the phbtogfaph, as well?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. Could vyou mark.that, as well.

A. (Witness marks on exhibit.)

Q. The left-hand.

A. Left-hand. Sorry."lt's right over here.
Q. And now, the flow path that you discussed

that was visible in this picture, could you circle it

and write "flow path," please.
A. (Witness marks on exhibit.)
Q. Now, you obviously saw this flow path from

the point at which you tock this photograph. bid you
see this flow paﬁh from any other point, any other
perspective? |

D Yes, it wés visible from 100th Strest.

Q. And where were you on 100th Street when you

saw this flow path?

AL Approximately the point where this arrow is
drawn.
Q. Okay. And could you write-- For that

second arrow in the upper right-hand corner, could

you write "observation point.”
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n. (Witness marks on exhibit.) On- this arrow

over on this side, on the left side of the page?

Q. Yeah.

. Actually, it's a little more right here, if
I could just clarify. (Witness marks on exhibit.)

Q. okay. So that was the discharge point to

the west. Let's talk about the discharge point to
the south. Which photos show,the—— I believe you
testified earlier that there weré four discharge
points which mefged with one iarger path. Where were
those dischargé points.iocated?
A. They would be photos 5--

MR. RYAN: Excuse me, Your Honor, I'd iike
to move at this point the last photograph we just
talked about, which would be- photograph 15, which 1is

Page 16 of 16 of attachment 4, move that in for

purposes of identification as Exhibit 23C.

MR. McAFEE: Your Honor, as we Jgo through
these; if I have a question about like the arrow on
the left-hand margin of this exhibit right‘now——and I
know Mr. Sena tried to move 1t a littie bit, I'm not
real sure I agree,with where the arrow is drawn.aﬁd
what.it depicts--but should 1 handle that on
cross-examination? |

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE : Yes.
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MR. McAFEE: Other than that, I have no
objection.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: " With that

said, Exhibit 23C is admitted.

(Complainant's Exhibit 23C
was received in evidence.}
BY MR. RYAN:

0. Okay.  I'm sorry I interrupted. Going back
to the south side of the‘lot, which pictures show the
discharges to the south?

A, Photos 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11 and 12.

Q. | Why don't we étart‘with pictures 5 and 6.

For the record, picture 5 starts at Page 6
bf 6 of attachment 4.tb-Exhibit 23. 'Sé we can move
along a little bit more qﬁickly, could you circle the

runoff path you observed there in photo No. 5.

A. (Witness marks on exhibit.)
Q. And mark it "runoff path:"
1N (Witness marks on exhibit.)
0. .And was there-- Werée there any control

structures to prevent runoff in the feedlot we see 1in
photo No. 5 from‘exiting the feedlot?

A No, there were not.

Q. In'youi experience as a CAFO inspectdr,.a

facility that has controls, what would you expect to

{
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see altong that fence line?
A. Diversion perms towards a sediment basin.
MR. RYAN: For pdrposes of idéntification,
1'd like to call this Exhibit 23D. I would move it
into evidence. |
MR. McAFEE: No objection.
THE ADMINESTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: 23D is
admitted. |
(Complainant‘s_Exhibit 23D
was received in evidence.)
RY MR. RYAN: |

Q. Let's look now at photo No. 6, which is Page

"7 of 16 of attachment 4 to Exhibit 23. That's the

next photo group. What does this photo show?
A. It shows a cqntinuation of the discharge

point shown in photo No. 5.

Q. 5o this is just looking the other direction?
A, Yes, 1t is.
Q. and could you circle for us the discharge

path that you identified in this photograph.

A. (Witness marks on exhibit.)

0. and is 1t your opinion that this discharge
path was caused by flowing water?

A. Yes.

0. and where would this water flow to?
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Q. Ts that in the distance in this photograph?

A. No, it 1is not. What you see in the distance

is a drainage path towards the unnamed tributary to
Elliot Creek.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUbGE: But youf
answér is that it is not in the photograph?
THE WITNESS: No, it isn't.
MR. RYAN: T would move this photo No. 6;
which is Page 7 of 16 of attachment 4 to Exhibit 23,
into evidence as Exhibit 23F. |
MRﬂ McAFEE: No objection.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: 23E 1is
admitted.
{(Complainant's Exhibit 23F
was received in evidence.)
BY MR. RYAN:
| Q. Let's move on to photo No. 7. Wherelwas'
phdto No. 7 taken? |
A. it was tékén at the! southeast cornér on the
south sidé of pen No. 2 looking east. |
Q. And did you identify a discharge'point off
of the feedlot in photo No. 77 |
A. Yes, T did. |

Q. Could you ciréle that discharge point,
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please, and mark it as before.

A (Witness marks on exhibit.)

0. And as before, were there any types of berms
or other controls to prevent runoff from the feedlot
from exiting the feedlot on the left-hand side of
photo No. 7 and draining off into what you.call the
discharge point?

A. No, ‘there were not.

MR. RYAN: I would like to move this exhibit
into evidence as Exhibit 23F7
MR. McAFEE: ©No objection.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: 23F‘is
admitted.
{Complainant's ExhibitAZBF
was received in evidencei)
BY MR. EYAN:

0. Let's move on to phéto No. 8, which i1s 9 of
16 in attachment 4 of Exhibit 23. Could you-- What
do you see in this particular photograph?

A. Runoff path from the southeast corner of pen
No. 2 and southwest corner of p@h No. 1.

Q  Okay. Could you again circle the runoff
path that you‘ideﬁtified during your site inspection
and. mark it.

A. (Witness marks on exhibit.)
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MR. RYAN: Your Honor, move this in as |
Exhibit 23G.
MR. McAFEE: No ébjection.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: 236G is
admitted.
(Complainant's Exhibit 23G
was received in evidence.)
BY MR. RXAN:

Q. L,et's now look at photo No. 9. Did you see

any-- What does this picture show?

A It shows the runoff paths from the southwest
corner of pen No. 13. | |

0. And as before, could you mark the runoff
paths that you observed.

A. (Witness marks on exhibit.)

MR. RYAN: And for purposes of
idenﬁificatibn, I would like to move this Page 10 of
16 of attachment 4 Lo Exhibit.23 into evidence as
Exhibit 23H1

MR. McAFEE: No cbjection.

~THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: 23H is
admitted.
(Complainant's Exhibit 23 H

was received in evidence.)
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BRY MR. RYAN:
. Again, are there'any perms or other runoff
controls visible in this photograph?
A. No,'there are not.
Q. Let's look at photo No. 10. What does photo
No. iO show?
A. It shows a runoff path from the southwest
cornex of pen No. 13.
Q. 3o is this a different angle on the sane
phdto we saw in photo No. 97
A. Yes, 1t is.
Q. So can you please circle for us once again
the runoff path that you observed in photo No. 10,
which is Page 11 of 16. | |
A. (Witness marks on exhibit.)
MR. RYAN: Your Honor, mové Page.ll of 16 of
attachment No. 4 to Exhibit 23 in as Exhibit 23T.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. ‘
MR. McAFEE: No objection. | |
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: 231 is
admitted. | |
(Complainant's Exhibit 231
was received in evidence.)
BY MR. RYAN:

Q.  Photo No. 11. What does photo No. 11 show?
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A T+ shows the runoff path from the south side
of pen No. 13.
Q. Okay. And is this a different runoff path
from what we saw in photos 9 and 107
| A. Yes, 1t is.

Q. And could you once again circle the runoff

path that you witnessed during your inspection in

photo No. 11.
A. (Witness marks on exhibit.)
MR. RYAN: Your Honor, I would move Page 12

of 16 of attachment 4 to Exhibit 23 into evidence as

Exhibit 23J.

MR. McAFEE: ©No objection.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:. 23J 1is

admitted.

(Cbmplainant‘s Exhibit 23J
was recelved in evidence.)
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: When you get
through.with this series on the;wI guess it would be’
the bottom section there,-we're gding to take a
10-minute break. We'll go éff the record now.
(Off—thewrecdrd discussion.)

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Back on the

record.
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BY MR. RYAN:

Q. Let's look at photo No. 12 now. 'What does

photo No. 12 show?

AL the runoff path from the south side of pen
‘No. 13.
Q. And once‘again, could you circle the runcff

path that you identified?
- A, (Witness marks on exhibit.)

MR. RYAN: Your Honor, I would move photc
No. 13 ihto.evidénca as 23K.

MR. McAFEE: No objecﬁion.

THE ADMINiSTRATEVE LAW JUDGE: 23K 1is
aémitted. (
| (Complainant's Exhibit 23K

was received 1in evidence.)

'BY MR. RYAN:

0. ~Mr. Sené, couid we turp'back to Page i of 16
of attachmeﬂt_é, the.éerial‘photograph.

A. Okay.

Q. Now, all of those photcgraphs that we just
discussed that were subse@uently labeled-ZBA rthrough
K, are all Of.ﬁhOS@ photogfaphs depicted on this Page
1 of 16 as the 1ittle circles 1 through 14? ~Is that
correct?

A. Yes, they are.
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0. Now, in locking to the south, for example,

the south you identified four discharge points,'the

first one being photos 5 and 6. And did you-- HoWw

did you determine whether those flowed through--down
to the unnamed tributary?

A. T could visibly see them flowing'dqwn to the
red line near the center of the page.

Q. The long red line that extends from the

east--approximately the east end of the feedlot to.

the unnamed tributary?

o Yes, it is.

Q. And who put that red line on this
photograph? |

- A. 1 adid.

Q. and how did ?ou determine where to put that

red line?

A. The drainage path was visible on the aerial
photograph.
0. 9o was there any doubt in your mind that

runoff from any of these four dlscharge points to the
south entered that long red line flOWlng towards the
unnamed tributary?
A, No.
MR. RYAN: Mr. Sena, yéu can take your seat

again.
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THE_ADMINISTRATEVE LAW JUDGE: Do you have
some other guestions about these photos?
MR. RYAN: I think I'm going to have him

done pretty guickly. In five or ten minutes I will

he done with this witness.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. That's
fine.

MR. RYAN: If that's appropriate, Your

“Honor.

BY MR. RYAN:
Q. ~ Mr. Sena, would you look at Page 4 of 8 of
your inspection report, please.. This is Exhibit 23.

Near the top of the page it says "receiving surface

waters." Do you see that?
A. Yes.
Q. Leok at No. 3, which is approximately the

middle of the page. 1t says, "What is the name of
t+he nearest named surface water?"™ You wrote.£n.
"Elliot Creek."™ How did you determine that?

AL From a USGS ﬁopographic map .

Q. and does the unnamed tributary, which'we'ﬁe

been referencing in many cof the previous photos, flow

into Rlliot Creek?

A. Yes, it does.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Which page
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were you on just.then, Mr. Ryan? |
MR. RYA&: Tﬁat was Page 4 of 8 of Exhibit
23.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUbGE: Thank you.
BY MR. RYAN:
Q. Let's look at Page 5 of 8 of Exhibit 23,
very top of the page. Do you see that?
A. Yes, 1 ao. |
Q. Under No. 1, what is the 25-year, 24-hour
rainfall amount for this location? Did you write in
5.2 inches?
A, Yes, I did.
Q. | And is that 5.2 inches per day, or what's
the unit on.that?
A. That.is 5.2 inches for thé 25-year, 24-hour
storm event. |
Q. . So in a 24—hopr period you would expect to

see 5.2 inches of rainfall?

A. Yes.

Q. And where did you get that number?

A. I got those from an NRCS rainfall map .
Q. What is NRCS?

A. Natural Resources Conservation Service.
Q. And is that a reliable source for

détermining rainfall events in Iowa?
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A. Yes, it is.

Q. And why is that number important?

A. It is the amount of rainfall that a facility
would have to contain. It.would have to contailn

vunoff from 5.2 inches of rainfall to contain all of

the runoff from a 25-year, 24-hour storm event.

Q. Is that a condition of the NPDES permit?
. Yes, it is.
Q. Let's look at the very last two pages of

i

Exhibit 23, which would be labeied‘as attachment No. 6.
What 1is this?

A. This is a Region 7 multimedia screening

checklist.

Q. Is this something you carry with you in the
field? |

A.  Yes, 1t 1is.

Q. and in the upper right-hand corner it says
mi,. Sena." Is that your handwriting?

a Yes, it is.

0. and down a couple lines below your.name it

séys "5.30"-~it looks like the zeroc has been

scratched out and a 1 added--"06." Ts that the date
of your inspection?
A. Yes, 1t is.

Q. pid you make that change from 30 to 317
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A, Yes, I did.

Q. Looking down the page close to the bottom of
the first page of attachment 6 to Exhibit 23, there
is a larger heading that says "Clean Water Act." Do
you see that?

A. Yes, 1 dd.

Q- There are five numbers there. No. 3 says,
"During rainfall events, can storm water carry
pollutants from manufacturing, processing, storage,

disposal, shipping," et cetera, "o storm sewers O

surface water?" Do you see that?
A. Yes.
Q. And it looks like you've marked off "yes."

Do you see that?
A. Yes.
Q. Was it your conclusion that this facility

you were inspecting on May 31, 2006, Mr. Vos

facility, was capable of discharging to surface

waters?
A Yes.
MR. RYAN: May I have 30 seconds, Your'
Honor? |

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Sure.

(Short'pause;)

PETERSEN COURT REPORTERS
317 $ixth Avenue, Sulte 606
Des Moines, IA 50309-~4155

(515) 243-6596




10
11
12
13
14
15

16

17

18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

o8
BY MR. RYAN:

0. I have one final‘question, Mr. Sena. Could
you please turn to the photographs ﬁhat we looked at
again, which is attachment 4 to Exhibit 23, and Jook
in particular at photo No. 3. |

A. Okavy.

Q. We already identified the runoff path from--
Actually, i just realized we did not discuss photos 3
and 4. I have four more guestions.

MR.IRYAN: I'm sorry, Your Honor.

Q. (Continuing) Before we get to photos 3 and
4, photo No. 3, how high are those crops that we see
planted. there? |

A, ‘Apéroximately one foot maximum.

G. And would you say.this was freshly tilled

grdund, or had it been tilled sometime before?

A. That's freshly tilled.
Q. Okay. And would the-- Let's look at photo

No. 4, attachment 4. Is that a closer picture of the
planted crops?
4. Yes, it is.

Q. And would YOu still say they're

approximately one foot in height in those?

A. Yes.

Q. Photos 3 and 4, where were those photos
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A. They were taken near the southwest corner of

pen No. 5.
Q. And do they-- As we discussed with the

others, 23A through K, do these show runoff paths?

A.  Yes, they do.

Q. And could you park them, please, as Wwe did
before.

A. " (Witness marks on‘exhibit.) I'm marking oﬁ

photo No. 3 right now.

THE_ADMINISTRATEVEILAW JUDGE: Let's go off

the record.

(Of f-the-record diécussion.)

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Wé‘ll take a

10*minut@ break and then rééume.
| {(Short recess.)
THE ADMiNISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Back on the
r@coré. |

BY MR. RYAN:

Q. Just'before the break, Mr. Sena, 1 asked you

to mark on photo No. 3, which is Page 4 of 16 of

Exhibit 23. And as His Honor‘pointed out, we didn't

have fhe light pro running. So you marked it
previous to our break.

Now that we've got the light pro up and
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running, just for.the record, the marks you have
t+here on photo No. 3, which we are looking at noﬁ on
the light pro, are those the mafks you made Jjust

prior to th@ break?

A. Yes, they are.
Q. And what do those marks represent?
Al The runoff path from the southwest corner of

pen No. 5.
MR. RYAN: So; Your Honor, I would move
photo No. 3 into evidence as E#hiﬁit 23L.
MR. McAFEE: No objection.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: 231, is
admitted.
{Complainant's.Exhibit 23L
was received in evidence.)
BY MR. RYAN:

0. Next to photo No. 4, which is the last
photograph I will,discpss with you, where was this
photograph taken? |

A. This was taken from the southwest corner of
pen No. S'loéking northeast.

0. And did you identify a runoff path in this

photograph?
A. Yes, I did.
L Q. Could you mark in photographl4 where you saw
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the runoff path.
A. (Witness marks on exhibit.)
MR. RYAN: I wpuld move this photo into
evidence as Exhibit 23M as marked.
MR. McAFEE: No objection.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: 23M 1is
admitted.
(Complainant's Exhibit 23M
was received in evidence.)
BY MR. RYAN:

Q. One final guestion, as with all the other

photographs we saw with runoff paths, were there any

berms or controls in place during your site visit

that WOuld'prevent runoff from exiting the feedlot

and flowing downhill?
A. Other than the terrace which is located on
the west side of the facility, there was not.

ME. RYAN: I have no further questions, Your

~Heonor.

THE ADMINESTRATIVE LAW JBDGE;‘ Okay. You
can resume your seat. We'll keep the machine on for
you. |

MR. McCAFEE:. Thank you, Your Honor.
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CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. McAFEE:

;

Q. Mr. Sena, can you hear me-okay?

A, Yes, 1 can.

Q. | Okay. Let's go to your inspection report
first, if we could, Mr.--1is it Sena?

_A, It's Sena.

Q. "Okay. And what I wanted to start witﬁ are

the attachments like Page -1 of 27, which is

attachment 1. And I believe you testified that you
received these attachments from the DNR field offiée_
before you did the inspgction.

A. Yes, I went to the DNR field office and
copied these.

Q. ‘Okay. Was that the day beforé?.

A. No, it wquld have been~~-T'm not sure what
day that was, but normally on Mondays.

Q. Okavy. And then whatéver day you would have'

heen--whatever day of the week 1t fell on that you

were at Mr. Vos' feedlot would have been the Monday

before?
A.  Yes.
Q. One reason I asked this--and lawyers are

notorious for looking at things like this--you see

the fax marks at the top of Page 1 of 277
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A. f@s, I dec.

Q. And it says a date of June f-~exeuse
me--June 10, 2005, this was faxed, I assume, from
Io@a‘DNR. It shows her@‘to somewhere. Was this
faxed to you?

A. T don't recall. Actually, I do recall.

Their copiler was down, so I stapled and put

paperclips on the papers I did want to keep. Then

they faxed a copy to me.

Q. Okay. But this gives a date of June 10,
2005. You were there on May 30-~somewhere around May
31, 206067 |

A. They mailed me copiles. That's what it was.

" They did mail me copies because the copier was down.

This date, I'm not sure what that means.

Q. Okay. This is not a date that you recognize
as it being faxed to you Or anything like that?

A. No.

Q. But now again just to make sure I
undefstand, you reviewed the file that day prior to
your inspection and tﬁen they sent you the copies at
sometime later?

AL Yes.

0. Okay. There's also sone handwriting at the

top of--I'm looking at Page 1 of 27 again.
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A. - Okay.
0. There's some initials on thé left-hand side,
a KH and NC. Do you know what those regard?
-A. No, I don't.
| G. Now, if you would go to Page 4 of 27 of that

exhibit, please.

A, Okay.

Q,. Can you describe this for the record,
please.

A.  This. appears to be a public notice for the

Lowell Vos Feedlot.

Q. | Okéy.. it follows, of course, Page 3 of 27,
which is the construction permit from 1991; is that
correct?

A, Yes.

Q; Howevér, if you look at this closely, this
is dated October‘6 of 2004. And I just want to make
sure T understand why it's in here. You've testified
that you included certain copies from the DNR file
and other copies you didn't. What is your purpose
for including this publication notice from 20047

A. Eecause it was a publication,‘proof of
publication for this permit--

Q. For the 19--

A. ~—-for a permit.
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Q. Okay. I'm sorry, I didn't mean to interrupt
you. I'm trying to determine;—‘ It couldn't be a
publication notice for the 1991 permit sihce it's
dated October of 2004. What were you'looking at
here? |

A. ° Tt was probably just attached to the permit,
and I copied that bundle of permits, whatever they
nhad in the file.

Q. Okay. But would you agree with me that
it--1 guess I won't speak for you--~but it doesn't
appear that it couid reléte to the previous permit?

A. It says October 2004. I don't know if it
relates to the other permit, or not.

Q. ODkay. I'd like to go baék to Page--the
first page of that @xhibit,_pleasé, Mr. Sena, which
would be Pageil of 8. And I have just a few
guestions aboﬁt the form itself énd how 1t was
completed. I believe you testified you completed
this foﬁﬁ; is that correét?

A, "Yes, I did.

Q.  And I believe——and you previously testified
that on Page 8 of 8 you signed it on June 8 of '56?

A. Yes.

0. And did you pr@pafe this form vyourself with

any input from anyone else?
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A. Other than Mr. Vos, no.
Q. Ckay. And the person who accompaniéd you
that day did not have input?
A. No.
Q. Tell.me what was the purpose forw—is it
Mr. Goschen?

A. Yes.

Q. mwwhét was the purpose for him accompanying
you?

A. Obéexﬁation to see how we_do.CAFO
inspections.

. In training?

A, Yes.

G. Okay. Did anyone review your report prior

to iﬁ being s;gned by you?

AL ‘Mr.lGoschen.

Q. Okay. Does the EPA follow a procedure where
someone else reviews your repdrt, say, a supervisor

or someone’?

A. © Yes, a supervisor reviewed this.

Q. And who would that have been?

A. Mr. John Houlihan.

O. Did Mr. Houlihan have any comments about

your report prior to it béing signed by you?

AL Content, no.
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Q. Didn't make any changes?
A. No.
Q. You answered "content, no." That leads me

to believe did he have some.other comments?
A. Typographical erroxs;
Q. Could we go to Page 3 of 8 ¢f the report. I

believe you earlier testified that "in your words

‘there were no controls in place at the Vos feedlot;

is that correct?
A. Yes.
0. Now, I know you've also recognized there was

a terrace there, and you don't consider that to be a

S control?

AL | No, not a design control for the 25-~year,
24-hour storm event.

0. I want tolmake suré the record is ciea; on
what you mean by the terraée. Isn't there alsoc a
basin present on tha west side of the feedlot?

Fi Yes, there is a smaii basin on the west sidé
of the feedlot.

Q. Okay. And it{s different than the terrace:;
is that right? |

A.  Yes, it is.

0. Do you know if the terrace is éonstrﬁcted in

any way to divert or channel whatever gets to the
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terﬁace to the basin? Do you knbw?

A, I don't reéall.

Q. Did you talk with Mr. Vos about that when
you were there?

A. No. Mr. Vos did not accompany me on the
walk-through. |

Q. Okay. Maybe I should go back. When you
arrived that day, first of all, did you notify

Mr. Vos prior ro doing your inspection?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. Do you remember when you notified him?-
A. Tt would have been the night before.

Q. Aand by telephone?

A. Yes,

Q. Okay. So he knew you were coming, and he

was present?
A. Yes.
Q. Was there anyone else present besides you,

Mr. Goschen and Mr. Vos?

A.  No.
Q. .Do you do an initial discussion with Mr. Vos
nere?
A. Yes.
- Q. and tell me a little bit about that

discussion.
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A. I just explained the procedures of the
inspection and just see:what his preferences are to
go through paperwork first or walk around first.

Q. Okay. Can you tell me, how was Mr. Vos'
feedlot selected for an inspection by yéu?

A. It was on a list provided by NPDES
facilities management branch.within EPA, and I don't
xnow how they targeted it. |

Q. And that was provided to you with no other

~explanation?

AL Yes.
Q. And, Mr. Sena, I want to make sure I
understand. You received some instruction from--what

was the branch again?

A. NPDES facilities management branch.

Q. That's within E?A?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. Is that a normal procedure for you when you

were conducting NPDES permit inspection services?

A. Yes, 1t 1is.

Q. Did you have ahy other knowledge aboutl
Mr. Vos' facility, other than it was on this list yéu'
wefe given? .

A. No.

Q. Other than copying records from the local
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‘DNR office, did you have any discussion with them

about the inspecticn of the facility?
A. No, I did not.

Q. Were you aware that Mr. Vos had participated

in what has been called and will be referred to

throughout this proceeding as the Jowa Plan?

A. - Yes.

Q. And tell me how you knew that.

A. It's in the file review,

Q. What fiie review 1s that?

A. Thaé Ilcomducted before the ins?ection.

Q. Okay. Is that documented?
A Attachment 1.
0. Attachment 1. But is it reflected in

Exhibit 23 anywhere that you know of?

A. Yes, it is attachment 1.

Q. 'OkayL And coulid you-—-I must be——‘ Could you
point to attachment 1 where it is. Is the form in |
here? . ' | ‘

A, fes, it is.

Q. Okay. What page is that?

A. Well, there is an open feedlot registration

form for the Iowa Plan.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Would it help

us out with the page number? There's 27 potential
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pages; 1s that correct?

THE WITNESS: Yes, theré are. It woul& be
Page 21 of 27.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Did you hear
that, Mr. McAfee?

MR. McAFEE: Yeé, I did.
BY MR. McAFEE:

Q. You referred to Page 21 of 27. Mr. Seﬁa, I

pelieve it's Page 5 of 27. My goal is not to make

you rifle through a punch of pages here searching for

something.

Al OCkay.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE : Do ybu agree?
THE WITNESS: Yeg, I do. Sorry.’
BY MR. McAFEL:
Q. And sé by that document thére you ﬁad
knowledge that Mr. Vos had regiétered for the Iowa

Plan; 1s that correct?

A. Yes.
Q. Had you heard of the Iowa Plan before that?
A; Yes. | |
' Q. How had you heard of it?’
A. I just heard it was a five-year period that

these facilities were granted amnesty from state

regs.
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THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: . His guestion

was how, not the substance of it. How did you hear
of it?
A. Just discussions during meetings, prior

meetings back in 2001.
BY MR. McAFEE:

0. - At the time you conducted the inspection of

Mr. Vos' feedlot, did you have any knowledge of where

we were at in the Iowa Plan as far as number of

yearé?
A T knew it was past. it was .at the end.
0.  And how did you know that?
A._; Just hearing:that.
- Q. Was it discussed in meetings within EPA?
A. I would;imagine‘so.
Q. bkay. You've testifiéd.you've conducted

Quite a few NPDES permit inspections; is that

correct?

A. Yes.

0. You may have testified to this, and 1
apologize if I'm not remembering, but I assumé that
some of those were not feedlots, but other types of
permitted facilities? |

A. Yes.

Q. Such as what would the other types be?
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A, Industrial users, waste water treatment

facilities, just about anybody that uses water, storm
water alsoc.

Q. Okay. Now, of the feedlots you inspect, are
some of them not in Towa?

A. Yes.

Q. Because'your region, Reglicen 7, covers which
othef étates?

A, Missouri, Kansas, Iowa, Nebraska.

Q. Now, at this time when you Conductéd
Mr. Vos' inspection, were you conducting other
inspections of other Iowa feedlots?

A;. Yes, 1 was.

¢.  And, do you know, were those related to the
Towa Plan also?

A. Yes.

0. Do you recall how many?
A. - No, I don't.
Q. And, do you recall, was it right around this

time in spring of '06 that would have been, as you've
testified, after the close of the Iowa Plan?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you recall gonducting any inspections of
Iowa feedlots.that‘had registered fo? the Iowa Plan

prior to that time period?
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A. No.
Q. Do yoﬁ recall any discussion within your
department~—wi£hin EPA about conducting inspections

prior to the close of the Iowa Plan?

A.. No.

Q. But you don't recall con@ucting any?
A. No, I didn't.

0. Okay. Mr. Sena, when you conducted the

inspection of Mr. Vos' feedlot, did you make any
observation as to the feedlot pens th@mselveé where

the cattle were?

A.  Yes, ‘I did.

Q. And what was that observation?

o, It appeared well kept, well maintained.
Q. And by~-- Could you tell me a little bit

more what you mean by that, by well kept?
AL I+ looked like he scréped regularly,'scraped
manure.
.THE ADMENiSTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: -Whén one
scrapes manure, what.does one do with 1t?
THE WITNESS: Normally étockpile it
somewhere and iater-apply it on land.
BY MR. McAFEE:
Q. Mr. Sena, did. you see any.stockpiles of

manure?
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A. No.

Q. 5o he could also have scraped it and hauled
it directly out to the fieid;ris that correct?

A Yes.

Q. Did\you have any discussion with Mr. Vos
aboﬁt this feedlot management of the pens while yoﬁ
were there that day?

A. I don't‘recall.

THE ADMENESTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: And he was
not with you when you weﬁt out there with the
trainee?

.THE WITNESS: No.

THE AQMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: It was just
the two of you out there, but.not with Mr. Vos with
you; correct?

THE WITNESS: That's correct. I spoke with

him after the inspection after I walked through.

' BY MR. MCAFEE:

0. Mr. Sena, I1'd like to have you take Exhibit
23 to the projector. I'm not going to go through all
of those photos, there's just a couple I want to have

you look at. And if you would bear with me a minute

while I review my notes here.

Would you please go to photo 3, which is--

well, it's probkably @asier for you to identify it as
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photo 3. You're already there. And in the caption
of photo 3 could you--well, could you please read the
caption where it says "photo showing."

A. Okay. It says, "The runoff path from
southwest corner of pen No. 5. The runoff from this
corner of pen No. 5 flows southwest towards the
terrace.”

Q. And this is the terrace you have spoken of
that;s on the west éide of the feedlof; correct?

AL Yes, 1t is.

Qi and Qou‘re noLt-—- Weli, you've indicated

this is a runoff @ath towards the terrace; is that

right?
A. Yes.

Q. pDid you make any obhservation or take any
photos pelow the teixace? |

A.  No, I did not.

Q. So you don't have any obsérvatian or photo
of any runoff path pelow the terrace where this |
runoff path led to the terrace?

A No, I do not.

Q. Let's sée. 1 wanted fo go back to the photo

where--I think it was one of the first ones we did

where you had drawn in an arrow and you kind of

changed the arrow where I think it's--1 think
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THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Is that the

photo you wanted to get to, Mr. McAfes?

MR. McAFEE: vyes, it is.

THFE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. Photo

15.
BY MR. McCAFEE:

Q. Thank you. Mr. Sena, I don't know fhat T
want you to write 5n this. because 1 understand what
you were trying t+o do, I believe, but I just want
some clarification that counsellhad.you mark where
you thought the—wonlthe‘left—hand side of the photo
where the unnamed tributary was} and you_first drew
an arrow that you have sincé scratched out that
appears to me-~and I wani your thbﬁght on this--it
appears to be the terrace.

A, Yes, the actual terrace is that green‘

vegetated area on t+he left-hand side of the page.

0. Yes. Mr. Vos can help us with this when he
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testifies, but do‘you have any further thought on
where the ending tributary would be on that photo?

A. Yes, it is right next to tﬁ@ structure on
the left-hand of the page. |
Q  and T would be okay with you writing on that
if--
MR. McAFEE: I guess I'll ask counsel-for
EPA if you're okay with that.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: _Mr. Ryan?
MR. RYAN: Yes, I apologize. I have no

cbhijection.

BY MR. McAFEE:

Q. ‘Would you please mark another arrow, if you

" would, where the unnamed tributary is next to.a

structure you've marked.
A. Okay. (Witness marks oﬁ exhibit.)

MR. RYAN: For purposes of‘clarification,
we're now marking on Exhibit 23C.

THE WITNESS: TI'm going to use.a ball point
pen because the tip of the Sharpie is Jjust too large.-
(Witness marks on exhibit.)

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:: Is thatlwhat
you wanted himlfo indicate ﬁhere, Mr. McAfee?

MR. McAFEE: Tt still looks to me like we're

pointing at the terrace. T know it's difficult to do
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with the anglelof'the photo.

THE WITNESS: {Witness marks on exhibit.)
The tributary goes right here~—actually, right here.

MR. RYAN: Let the record reflect that the
Witneés Just~--what did you mark in with your peﬁ
there?

THE WITNESS: i marked the unnamea tributary
Lo Eliiot Créek.

MR. RYAN: TIs it the line on the left-hand
side of the photo? | |

THE WITNESS: Yes, it is.
BY MR. McAFEE: |

' 0. I'm fine with that. I just want the record
to be clear that the unnamed tributary is not fh@
terrace, and I think we can do that thrdugh other
photes, et cetera. I think the record will be clear,
put, Mr. Sena, I want fo give ydu.fhé beﬁefit_of
clarifying what you previously‘marked. Are you
comfortable with what you marked there as unnamed
tributary?
A. Yes, i am.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Let mérchime
in here, asgs well. 1f someone, in addition to me when-
T look at this—--now on this exhibit we have three

markings indicating UNT for unnamed tributary. The
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iast, most recent one, ;s the one that Mr., McAfee was
asking about.

My suggestion would be that after that one
put =a parenthesis; and within that parenthesis put an
¥ referring to cross-examination. And then we'll

know that on the record when someone 1is reviewing

“his that that's what you're talking about.

So in efféct——tell me if this i1s a fair
characterization--your first marking was less
accurate because that reallytwas cloéér to the berm--
the terrace, I'm sorxy;wwhereas now, Mr. Sena, where

the X is, where it says "UNT (X)" you feel that's a

- more accurate depiction of the location of the

unnamed tributary; is that fair?

THE WITNESS: Yes, I do.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE : What ish'f
clear is that you'wve drawn alline from‘that down ﬁo
the pdint'in front of that stxucture, but also there
is a faint line moving laterally across there, whiéh
is prior to that unnamed tributary.

It would be better, 1T think, if ybu made
that a littde clearer because it's.only dark at the
beginning of that near the structure. But your
intention is that.goes all the way acroés‘alﬁbst to

the road?
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THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE‘ADMINISTRATIVE.LAW JUDGE: Is that true?

THE WITNESS: Yeé. The problem 1s the
ballpoint pen doesn't mark on the glossy photo.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Try ﬁhis blue
pen. ] don't know 1if it will show up as blue.

(Witness marks on e#hibit.)

THE ADMINISTRATEVE.LAW JUDGE:‘ The last

suggestion I would make is you have one arrow by the

UNT (X)) . Draw a second arrow from there in a vector

out to show that it's_not one spot, but an entire
liné, an upside down V. Where you put the X, where
youlhaﬁe the X, wouldn't it be fair to have an upside
down V where you have one line going dbwn from

UNT (X) to this one spot, but it really represents
not one spot but a whole line.

(Witness marks on exhibit.)

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAWVJUDGE: Yes. That
would then indicate that it's referring to an entire
distance of this unnamed territory. .Thank you.

| Is it also faif to state before I stop
interrupting here that the‘UNT on.thé right-hand
corner, that also would be inaccurate pased upon your
secénd UNT (X) marking that the UNT which ié just

next to where it says "obs@rﬁation point," that that
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UNT is also not correct?

THE WITNESS: No, that one should be correct
at the point of-the culvert which crosses under 100th
St?eet.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay; Go
ahead, Mr. Mchfee.

MR, McAFEE: Thank you, Your Honor.

Thank you, Mr. Sena, for clarifying this. 1
understand if‘s difficult to do with this type of
photo. But as the Court has indicated, when somebody

else looks at this down the road a ways, we won't

‘"have the benefit of recovery in time plus‘having your

explanation.
Anyway, I think we've taken care of this.
THE ADMINISTRATEVE LAW JUDGE: Good. You
have another photo? |

MR. McAFEE: No, but 1 do have another

gquestion on this photo.

BY MR. McAFEL:

0. vou have circled the flow path, I think,

throughout these photos that you have drawn on. You

have used the ferm "runcff path," T believe, "flow

path, discharge path." In 21l of these you're’

‘referring to the same thing; is'that right?

A. Yeg, 1 am.
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Q. And in any of these photos-- First of all,
I'1ll ask you what you see in the photos. Do you see

any evidence in these photos of these flow paths of

‘any manure or any other type of what you would

consider a poilutant from‘th@ feedlot?

A.. No.

Q. Did ycu see any~-— Aside from these photos
bn the day éf‘your visit, did you Sée anything
regarding discharge in, let's say, the cornfield from
the feedlot of any polliutants, manure or anything

else that you would consider in that category from

rhe feedlot?

A. No, it wasn't raining that day.
0. = So you didn't see any actual runoff

occourring; correct?

A, No, I did not.
Q. But did you see any evidence of runoff~-1I
don't want to--I'm not trying to trick you here. I

realize that these photos with the flow paths are
being presented for tﬁat purpose. What I'm asking is
did you see anything in these flow paths regarding
manure, feedlot runoff.or anythiﬁg like that?

A. No, I did not.

Q. Did you see anything like that in the

unnamed tributary of Elliot Creek?
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A. No, I did not.

Q. And did you go down to Flliot Creek or—-
exCcuse me. I said that wrong. Did ybu go to the

unnamed tributary‘and actually look at it?
A. - Other than the point at the culvert on 100th

street, I did not.

Q. So you did not walk the unnamed tributary?
A. No, I didn't.
0. What abouﬁ glliot Creek, did you actually

follow the unnamed tributary to Elliot Creek?
AL No, I did not. But there is a topo map on
attachment 4. T think it's attachment 3,lactually,

that shows the connectivity.

. Okay.. I understand-- And those will be
exhibits. I'm asking ydu what you did and what you
"saw. You did not follow the unnamed tributary to

Elliot Creek; is that correct?

L. Mo, I did not.

Q. Okavy. During your inspection did you take
any oﬁhex'type of evidence--what [ would coﬁsidef

gatherlng evidence such as water samples?

A.  No, I did not.
Q. Do you ever do that during an inspection?
A. ves. In the event of an actual discharge

where it's flowing, I do.
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Q. Okay. And you did not do that here because
you did not see a discharge--an actual discharge

flowing, I think is the words. you've just used?

A. Yes.
Q. T think I'm done at the projector there.
T'm almost positive I am. S0 if you would like tb go

pack, I just have a few more gquestions, 1 beiieve,
regarding your report.

A, Okay.

Q. "Mr. Sena, it's in ﬁhe actual form itself. I

think that's th@'first eight pages of Exhibit 23.

Would you please go to Page 5.

B. Qkay.

Q. The second line down on the form-—-and my
paper punch has taken this out--is there a nuﬁber
there below No. 17

A. No. 2.

0. That would make sense. Thank you. And
that's followed b& a, B, ¢, D, E, et catéra; right?

A. Yes. |

Q. and that line 2 says, "Have there been any
documented discharges of livestock waste to surfaée
is that correct?

A. Yes.
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Q. Thank you. Now, down tO No. 3~-and you've
previously testified to this--it asks, "Is the
facility currently discharging livestock waste from
the production area?" And you checkéd "no."

I want to clarify. When the fqrm says
"currently," does the form mean when you're there,
right there that day? . ' ‘ |

A, Yes, it doeé. |

Q.  Have-you had inspections where there was‘a‘
dischargeﬂoccurring?

A .Yes, I have.

Q. And I guess I shouid clarify an inspection
of é CAFO feedlot?

AL Yes.

0. Okay. Back on the page beforelthat~—l
believe it is-~it's No. 2 on Page 4 of 8--it asks
about man-made features that could affect runoff; is
that right?

A. Yes.

Q. and I guess I wasn't fair when I read that.

it actually says, "Are theie‘any man-made features

not associated with the production area that could

saffect runoff?" And you checked "no."
} :
So did you answer that meaning that

this--the terrace and the basin that you've indicated
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were there, that they're part of the production area?

A. i'm not sure if they're actually part of the
produétion area.

Q. Are yog not considering them a manmmade_
feature that would affect runoff?

AL Yes,.but.they would not be sufficient to
contain a 25-year, 24-hour event.

Q. I understand that's your testimonj. I dust
want to clarify when you answer no to this gquestion,
I meén, t+here is a terrace--at the time cf your

inspection if there was a terrace and a basin there,

- why did you not indicate in the answer to this

queétion that they were there?

A, Because the intent of the form was manmade
featurés‘that could affect or which could centain the
25-year, 24-hour event.

Q. _ Okay. So the intent of‘thé guestion, even
thoughlit doesn't say'that, is related to the 25~
year, 24-hour event? |

A. Yes.

Q. And you have guite a bit of experience with
this form, I take it?

AL Yes.

Q. Has this form changed dﬁring the period'of

time you were doing inspections of feedlots?
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i Yesg, 1t has:
Q. And did you have any input into how this
form waé prepared?

A. vYyes, 1 did.

Q. Tell me about that.
A. Our inspectors and our compliance people got

tégether and put this form together.

Q. Okay. I want +o make sure, Uthen, jgsf that
T'm clear that you're not indicating that--you're not .
arguing with the fact that there is a terrace there
and that there 1is a basin--what you call a
sedimentatibn pasin, that that 1is there?

A. Cérrectf

Q. and would you agree that it could affect
runoff even though it may not contain the Z5-year,
24-hour storm?'

A, Yes.

Q- Okay. Tn your experlence in inspecting
feedlots, do you éée now other features such as corn

rows could affect runcff?

A.  Yes.
0. Tell me how.
A. Normally it spreads it out or it runs down

the corn row depending on how it was disked.

Q. Okay. 350 corn rows, of course, are a
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product of planting corn in a line so it can be
cultivated, harvested, et cetera; is that correct?

A,  Yes.
Q. And as a part of some soil conservation

practices-~and, in fact, in most areas—-those corn

. rows are perpendicular to the flow path?

A, Yes.

Q. So they do provide some impedimeﬁt to
runoff? |

Al Yes, they'do.

. Okay. Did you obsézve fhat here?

A T observed the corn roﬁs wefe perpendicular

to direction runoff.
MR, McAFEE: Okay. If I could, Your Honor,
have Jjust a minute?
THE‘ADMINZSTRATIVE LAW~JUDGE: Absolutely.
(Short'pause.)
MR. McAFEE: Your Honor, tﬁank you.
BY MR; McAFEE: |
. 1 don't believe I'll need you to use the
projector, but I do want to gb back to a couple of
the photos and just ask you some questions about
TLhen. It would be photos 13 and 14. I apologize,
T'm looking in my notes. ‘Do we have an exhibit

number for those photos? Maybe they weren't marked
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on.

MR. RYAN: Yes, ﬁhey were. Photo 13, which
is Page 14 of 16 of attachment 4 to Exhibit 23, has
ween marked as 23B, and photo 14 has been marked as
23A.

MR. McAFEE: Thank you.

BY MR. McAFEE:

Q. .So‘these were the first two photos 1 believe
Lhat you marked on. And 1 don't need to gd back to
your markings, but what I want to clarlfy here is you
talked, I believe, in'your testimony about runoff,
you'kngw, and flow paths from tge feedlot.

Based on your inspection that day would you
agfee Lhat this area is more than 3ust feedlot,.that

there's cropland that drains here also?

A Yes.

Q. go some of the flow would be from cropland
also?

A.  Yes.

Q. and talking more generally about some of the

other photos, I gﬁess, on the south side of the
feedlot that you'wve testified to roday--these are
from the north side--but also some of the pﬁotos from

the'séuth side, that, in fact, that's a fairly large

drainage area; 1s that correct?
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A.  Yes, it is.
0. And so there are more areas thét drain into
those flow paths than just the feedlot?
Al Yes. -

MR. McAFEE: We have no further qﬁestions[
Your Honor.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: - Okay. What
we're going to do is break for lunch. If there is
any redirect, we'll take that after luﬁch.l

(Recess at 12:40 p.m., until 1:40 p.m. of

the same day.)
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AFTERNOON SESSION - 1:40 p.m.

THE.AﬁMENISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Back on thé
record. Mr. McAfee had finisﬁed his
crosséexqmination. Anything on redirect, Mr. Ryan?

MR. RYAN: Yes, Your Honor, just a few
guestions.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE : Sure.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. RYAN:

Q. Mr. Sena, do you recall talking on
cross—éxamination about Mr. Vos maintaining a well
Rept lot? Do you remember that testimony?

A. Yes, 1 do.

0. Now, 1s that term "well kept lot,” does that

,efer to his compliance with the Clean Water Act or

something else?

A. It applies to the cleanliness of his pens.

Q. | Ts that more related to the health of his
animals or his compliance with the Clean Water Act?

A. Health of his animals.

Q. ‘Now, let's get photos 3 and 4, You
testifiedlabout photos 3 and.4, which are part of
attachment 4 tTo your inspection report, Exhibit 23.
Do you recall that?

AL Yes.
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Q. And there was testimony as to whether those

discharge--those photos 3 and 4 discharge through the

terrace. Do you recall that?
A, Yes.
Q. Now, you recall during your direct testimony

that you identified four--I believe it was four
discharge points from the south pért of the lot?
B. Yes, I did.
Q. Were photos 3 an& 4 part of those four

discharges?

A.  No, they were not .

0. Okay. You were asked if you saw any manure
'in the runoff. Do you recall that qﬁéstion?

A. Yes.

Q. Is it possible that runoff can cccur and not
ijeave a manure trace béhind?

A. Yes, it's péssible.

Q. And are there other dissolved pollutants and

runcff from feedlots?

A. Yes, there are.

Q. Would nitrogen, for example, be a dissolved
pollutanf?

A. Yes.

Q. vou wouldn't necessarily see nitrogen in the

runoff path?
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A. No, you would not.

Q. Now, leocking at Page--can you please turn to
Pége 5 of 8 of your inspection report. You were
asked abouﬁ No. 2 at the top of Page 5 of 8. "Have

there been any doCumented discharges of livestock
waste to surface water in the past.year?" You'
checked "no."

| De you recall that testimony?

A. - Yes, I do.

Q. Doestthat mean that there were no discharges

or you just don't know of any?

A. That means that I didn't know of any in the

‘past year.

Q. Is it possible there were discharges, you

just don't Rnow about them?
A. Yes.

Q. _And on cross—examination you were also asked
some questiéns aboﬁt the'tézrace and basin on the
west side of the facility. Based on your
observations at your site inspection, did ﬁhat
terface or that‘basin that was part of that terrace
system on the west, did that'have any effect -
whatsoeyer on discharges to the south of the
facility?

A. No, it did not.
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Q. And how about discharges to the north?

AL It did not either.
Q. RBased upen.your observations, where was the

majority of the discharge from the site happening?

A. From the south.

Q. And you also recall on cross*examination you
were asked about the éorn rows and how théy typicaily
run perpendicular to flow paths. Do you recall that
testimony?’

A. Yes, 1 do.

Q. And couid you turn to photo No. 5, please,
which is part of attachment 4 té Exhibit 23. |

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Photo 57
MR. RYAN: Yes. ~ That would be Page © of 6.
of attachment 4 to Exhibit 23. |

A. Okéy.

BY MR. RYAN:

0. Looking at photo 5, for example, would ?ou
say that flow path .is cutting perpendicular to the
corn rows?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. And is the-- Is there any guestion in your
mind that it's cutting through those corn rows?

R "'No, there is no guestion.

Q. Let's look at photo No. 6, the next page,
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